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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of County Commissioners
Greene County, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Greene County,
North Carolina as of and for the year then ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise Greene County's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Greene
County, North Carclina’s management. OQur responsibility is fo express opinions on these basic financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler
Gerneral of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obfain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the Greene County
ABC Board were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component unif, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Greene County, North Carolina as of
June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 19, 2012 on our
consideration of Greene County's internal control over financial reporting and our fests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grants and other matters. The purpose of the report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integrai part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in
considering the results of our audit,



Page 2

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's Discussion and
Analysis and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowances and the Other Postemployment Benefits
Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions on pages 59-60 and 61-62, respectively, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the hasic financial statements. We do not
express an opinlon or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
Greene County's basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory information, combining and individual nonmajor
fund statements, budgetary schedules and other schedules, as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal and State awards as required by U.S, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the Siate Single Audit Implementation Act are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the schedule of
expenditures of federal and State awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the schedule of
expenditures of federal and State awards are fairly stated in ali material respects in relation to the basic financial
staiements taken as a whole. The introductory information and the statistical section have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.

November 19, 2012



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Greene County, we offer readers of Greene County's financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of Greene County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, We encourage readers {o
read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the County's
financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights
s The assets of Greene County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $37,941,219.

e The government’s fotal net assets increased by $1,048,066, primarily due to increased net assets in the Utility
Fund. This compares fo d@n increase of $4,406,166 in 2011,

¢ A prior period adjustment of ($201,693) was made to the governmental activities beginning net assets {See Note
H-D).

¢ As of the close of the current fiscal year, Greene County's governmental funds (which include the general,
special revenue and capital proiects funds) reported combined ending fund balances of $1,773,181, a decrease
of $3,151,795 in comparison with the previous year. Approximately 25,.30% of this {otal amount, or $448,568 is
available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund halance). in 2011, the unassigned fund
halance was $2,100,614, or 8.16% of expenditures.

e At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $448,568, or 2.61% of total
General Fund expenditures for the fiscal year. In 2011, unassigned fund balance in the General Fund was
$2,434,330 or 14.37% of total General Fund expenditures.

« Greene County’s fotal debt increased by $8,863,455, or 30.08% during the current fiscal year. New debt totaling
$16,348,714 was issued during the current fiscal year. Of this amount, $6,537,000 represents Bond Anticipation
Notes received in prior years for the Greenville Utilities Commission Waterline Improvements Project Phase 1C
that were refinanced with the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) during the fiscal year. Other key
factors in new issuances include 1) Global Transpark Development Zone Loan issued 2) USDA funds to
complete construction of the Greene County Intermediate School; and 3) Drinking Water State Revolving Funds
Program (DWSRF) funds fo complete construction of the Greenville Uilities Commission Waterline
Improvements Project Phase 1F.

e Construction began in the prior year on the $14,000,000 Greene County Intermediate School Project.
Construction in progress will be carried by the County on the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets until
construction is complete. Title to the asset will be transferred to the Greene County Board of Education upon
completion of the project. The County has entered into two installment purchase contracts with USDA that will
total $13,600,000. The remaining $400,000 will be provided in the form of a grant from USDA.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are infended fo serve as an infreduction to Greene County’s basic financial statements. The
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes fo the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two
different views of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. |n addition
to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's
understanding of the financial condition of Greene County.

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Management's Discussion and Analysis (confinued)

County of Greene
Required Components of Annual Financial Report
Figure 1
Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide Fund Notes fo the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary »  Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information and the County's financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 10} are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities
of the individual parts of the County’'s government. These statemenis provide more detail than the government-wide
statements. There are four parts of the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the
budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes on the financial statements explain in detail
some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details
about the County's non-major governmental funds, all of which are added together in one column on the basic financial
statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Following the notes is the required supplementary information. This section contains funding information about the
County’s pension plans.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s
finances, similar in format fo a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide
short and long-term information about the County’s financial siatus as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are the
difference between the County’s total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the County’s
financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) business-type activities;
and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as public safety,
parks and recreation, and general administration.  Properly taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these
activities. The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide. These include the Utility,
Landfill, and Transportation services. The final category is the component units. Greene County Water & Sewer District |
(the District) was established to provide sewer service for the school system and county residents within the District. The
District was formed November 4, 2002 in accordance with North Carolina General Statute 162A-86. The District has
been included with the County’s Utility Fund. The Greene County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Financing
Authority exists to issue and service revenue bond debt of private businesses for economic development purposes. The
authority is governed by a seven member board, all of whom are appointed by the county commissioners. Although
legally separate from the county, the ABC Board is important to the County because the County is financially accountable
for the Board by appointing its members and because the Board is required to distribute its profits to the County.

The government-wide financial stalements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detfailed look at the County's most significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. Greene County, like ail other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to
ensure and reflect compliance {(or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes
or the County’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of Greene County can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County's basic services are accounted for in governmental
funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at
year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting. This method also has a current financial resources focus. As a result, the
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed shori-term view that helps him or her determine if there
are more or less financial resources available to finance the County's programs. The relationship between government
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is desecribed
in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

Greene County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a
legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the
decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. |f also authorizes the County to obtain
funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General
Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded
in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the
budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget
document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as
amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and
4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the
difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the
differences in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.



Management’'s Discussion and Analysis {continued)
County of Greene

Proprietary Funds - Greene County has one kind of proprietary fund. Enferprise Funds are used 1o report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Greene County uses
enterprise funds to account for its utility (water and sewer) operations, landfill operations (that include scrap tire and white
goods), and transportation. These funds are the same as those separate aclivities shown in the business-type activities
in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. Infernal Service Funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the functions of Greene County. The County uses an internal service
fund to account for one activity — its seif-funded medical insurance operations. Because this operation benefits
predominantly governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal service fund has been included within the
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiductary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Greene County has three agency funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes {o the financial statements begin on
page 24 of this audited financial report.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain
required supplementary information concerning Greene County’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension
benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 61.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net asseis may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The
assets of Greene County exceeded the liabilities by $37,941,219 as of June 30, 2012. As of June 30, 2011, the net
assets of Greene County stood at $37,094,846. The change in net assets for the year of $1,048,066 along with the prior
period adjustment to beginning net assets in the governmental activities of ($201,693) (See Note HI-D) make up the net
increase in fotal net assets for the year of $846,373. This compares to an increase of $4,406,166 in 2011. One of the
largest portions, $30,649,622 (80.78%), reflects the County’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, water and
sewer distribution lines, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt still cutstanding that was issued to acquire
those items. Greene County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although Greene County's investment in its capital assets is reporied net of the
outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital
assets cannot be used fo liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of Greene County's net assets $9,873,013
{26.02%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance
of ($2,582,316) ((6.80%)) is unrestricted. In 2011, the amount of net assets invested in capital assets net of related debt
was $27,518,939, with restricted assets standing at $9,218,165. The remaining $357,742 was unrestricted net assets for
that year.

Greene County’s Net Assets

Figure 2
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Current and other assets $5,670,952 $7.086,940 %$8,946,250 $8,166,587 $14,517,202  $15,253,627
Capital assels 28,877.491 17,082,485 39,818,541 39,404 280 68,696,032 56,486,765

Total assets $34,448,443 $24,169,425 $48,764,791 $47,570,867 $83,213,234 $71,740,202
Long-term liabilities outstanding $21,681,544 $12,334,575 $18,058,990 $12,004,869 $39,740,534  $24,339,444
Other liabilities 3,852,300 2,104,413 1,679,172 8,201,589 5,531,481 10,306,002

Total kabilities $25,533,853 $14,438,988 $19,738,162 $20,206,458 $45,272,015 $34,645.446
Netassets:
Invested in capital $8,530,053 $6,311,077 $22,119,569 $21,207.,862 $30,649,622 327,518,939
Resftricted 3,494,888 2896472 6,379,025 6,321,693 9,873,913 9,218,165
Unrestricted (3,110,351) 522,888 528,035 (165,146) (2,582,316) 357,742

Total net assets $8,914,590 $9,730,437 $29,026,629 $27,364,409 $37.041,219 $37,094.846




Management’s Discussion and Analysis (confinued}

County of Greene

Several particular aspects of the County’s financial operations negatively influenced the total unrestricted governmental

net assets:

e The Intermediate School and the Courthouse Renovations Capital Projects both have combined deficit fund
balances before factoring in debt service funds of ($2,458,927) at year end due to the timing of loan draws in
relation to expenditures (See Note II-B). The expenditures in these funds are construction in progress in the
government-wide statements, therefore, increasing the amount of net assels invested in capital assets, net of

related debt.

progress), the amount of net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt is inflated.

Since the loan draws are significantly less than the amount of expenditures (construction in

« Restrictions on net assets in the governmental activities have increased by $655,748 from the prior year while

total net assets have decreased,
- Greene County Changes in Net Assets

Reventues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Services
Cperating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Local Option Sales Tax
Other Taxes
Grants and Contributions not restricted
o Specific Programs
lnvestment Earnings
Other
Total revenues
Expenses:
General Government
Public Safety
Emdronmental Protection
Economic and Physicat Development
Human Services
Cuftural and Recreation
Education
Infereston Long-Term Debt
Uility
Landfil}
Nonmajer Enterprise Activities
Total expenses
Increase (Decrease) in net assets
before transfers and special items
Transfers
Sales of Fixed Asseis
Special items - Disposal of Fixed Assets
Special item - Donated Asset
Increase (Decrease) in net assets
Net assets, July 1 as originally reported
Prior Period Adjustment, See Note IH-D
Net assets, July 1 as Restated

Net assets, June 30

Figure 3
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$1,147,054 $1,388,798 $3,253,667 $3.356,180 $4,400,721 $4,744,976
4,852,883 5,492,873 1,079,824 961,458 5,932,707 6,454,331
202,340 310,665 1,463,250 4,881,702 1,665,590 5,192,367
8,498,840 8,468,264 8,496,840 8,468,264
2,083,912 1,903,515 2,083,912 1,803,515
32,8638 62,724 32,638 62,724
82,585 83,648 82,585 83,648
2,179 8,068 3,849 12,508 6,028 20,574
77,138 53,082 77,138 53,062
$16,977,570 $17,771,615 $5,800,590 $9.211,846 $22778,160 $26,983,461
$2,636,891 $2,449,100 $2,636,891 $2,449,100
5,419,322 4,955,910 5,419,322 4,955,910
46,206 55,521 46,206 55,521
623,411 578,240 623,411 576,240
5,977,704 6,353,920 5,977,704 6,353,920
361,980 491,229 361,990 491,229
2,944 661 3,027,219 2,944,661 3,027 219
329,784 421,471 329,784 421,471
$3,038,436 $2.314,851 3,038,436 2,314,851
892,056 647,868 892,056 647,868
486,080 499,747 486,080 499,747
$18,339,969 $18.330,610 $4,416,572 $3,462466 $22756541  $21,793,076
($1,362,399) {$558,995)  $1,384,018 $5,749,380 $21,619 $5,190,385
(278,202) {128,683) 278,202 128,683
6,520 6,520
(790,739) (790,739)
1,026,447 1,026,447
($614,154) {$1.478417) $1,662,220 $5,884,583 $1,048,066 $4,406,166
9,730,437 11,208,854 27,364,409 21,479,826 37,094,846 32,688,680
(201,893} {201,693)
9,528,744 27,364,409 36,893,153
'$8,914,590 $9,730,437 $29,026,629 $27.364,409 $37,941,219 $37,004,846




Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the County’s net assets by $815,847. This compares fo a
decrease of $1,478,417 in 2011. The key elements of this year's decrease are as follows:

e State and Federal Grants & Contributions are down approximately $508,000 from the previous year.

» Jail and Officer Fees are down approximately $117,000 mainly due to the County no longer providing law
enforcement services to the Town of Snow Hill and the Town of Hookerton.

s  Ambulance and EMS Fees collected during the year are down approximately $149,000.
e There were no lottery funds received during the year for the Scheol Capital Project Fund.
s Transfers to other funds are up from the previous year while expenses remained flat.

e A prior period adjustment for ($3201,693) was made during the year. See Note H-D.

Business-type activities. - Business-type activities increased Greene County's net assets by $1,662,220. Net assets
increased by $5,884,583 in 2011. The key elements of this increase are as follows:

e The County received a number of loans and grants for the continued construction of the Greenville Utilities
Commission Waterline Project.

¢ Collections for tipping fees in the County Landfill continue o be up due io Hurricane Irene.
Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, Greene County uses fund accounting fo ensure and demonstirate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Greene County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
ouiflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Greene County's financing
requirements.  Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Greene County. At the end of the current fiscal vear, the County’s fund
balance available in the General Fund was $448,568, while total fund balance reached $3,473,053. As a measure of the
general fund’s lquidity, it may be useful to compare beoth fund balance available and tetal fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Fund balance available represents 2.61% of total General Fund expenditures, while fotal fund balance
represents 20.18% of that same amount.

At June 30, 2012, the governmental funds of Greene County reported a combined fund balance of $1,773,191, a 64.00%
decrease from last year. Of this decrease, approximately 33% is directly related to the negative change in fund balance
in the General Fund. Approximately 18% is directly related to the negative change in fund balance in the Intermediate
School Capital Project Fund. This project currently has a ($2,048,038) fund balance due to the timing of loan draws in
relation to expenditures. Approximately 8% is directly related to the negative change in fund balance in the Special
Revenue Funds and 7% is directly related to a prior period adiustment in the amount of ($201,693) (See Note [li-D).

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions.
Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendmenis made fo adjust the estimates that are
used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize
new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; 3) increases in appropriations that
become necessary to maintain services. Several amendments to the General Fund increase revenues by $403,337 and
are explained as follows:;

¢« The County's budget was amended to receive an additional $175,000 of Medicaid Hold Harmless dollars.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

e« The County's budget was amended far $50,000 for Article 40 one-half percent Local Option Sales and Use
Tax. '

e The County’s budget was amended to receive $50,000 from for a Global Transpark Development Zone Loan.

e The County’s budget was amended to account for appropriations to fund additional County services and
expenditures in the amount of approximately $128,337.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. Greene County’s capital assets for its government and business-type activities as of June 30, 2012,
totals $68,696,032 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings, water and sewer distribution lines,
tand, equipment, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include:

]

@

L

Purchased six used reconditioned vehicles for the Sheriff's Department.
Purchased new equipment for the recreation park to replace equipment destroyed by the April 2011 Tornado.

Received in the form of a donated asset from Neuse Regionat Library, the new completed Greene County Library
Addition from NRL's recent construction project. See Note XI.

Additional amounts of construction in progress relating to the Courthouse Renovations Project as well as the
Intermediate School Project.

Additional phases of the Greenville Utilittes Commission Waterline Project, 1C and 1F, went online during the
year. Upon completion of all phases of this project, Greene County will be able to receive water transmission
from Greenville Utilities Commission.

Purchased used track dozer and compactor for the Landfill Fund.
Purchased new vans for the Transportation Department and also disposed of older vans as well.

Greene County’s Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation)

Figure 4
Governmental Business-type
Agctivities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Land $628,982 $650,923 $337,382 $328,202 $966,364 $979,125
Buildings and System 14,915,567 14,013,159 39,008,204 25,113,083 54,013,771 39,126,222
Machinery and Equipment 294,058 210,967 122,787 104,778 416,845 315,745
Vehicles and Motorized Equipment 211,665 208,191 260,168 155,081 471,833 363,272
Construction in Progress 12,827,219 1,999,245 13,703,156 12,827,219 15,702,401

$28,877,491 $17,082,485 $39,818,541 $30,404,280  $68,696,032 $56,486,765

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in note l[LLA.6 on pages 37 - 38 of this audited financial

report.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
County of Greene

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2012, Greene County had $14,633,556 in bonded debt outstanding all of which is
backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Notes Payable $168,387 $11,385 $157,002
Globat Transpark Development Zone Loan 327,223 $50,000 96,743 280,480
instatiment Purchase Contracts 10,771,408 9,477,168 58,140 20,190,436

52

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:

instaliment Purchase Contract $2,250,174 $534,758 $1,715,416
Bond Anticpation Notes 6,537,000 6,537,000

Clean Water Bond L.oan 2,066,788 172,232 1,894,556
Revenue Bonds 6,202,000 $6,537,000 12,739,000

DWSRF Revolving Loan
Total Business-type Activities

1,140,455 1,350,000

Greene County's tofal debt increased by $8,863,455 (30.08%) during the past fiscal year. New debt for the Greene
County Intermediate School was issued fo the County for $8,010,544, new debt for the Greene County Courthouse
Renovations was issued to the County for $466,624, a new Global Transpark Development Zone Loan was issued to the
County for $50,000, and additional monies pertaining to the DWSRF Revolving Loan were issued in the amount of
$284,545. The $6,537,000 GUC Waterline Project Phase 1C Bond Anticipation Note, “{BAN)" proceeds were refinanced
during the fiscal year with USDA. The County also has debt retirement of $948,258 for the year.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8 percent
of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal debt margin for
Greene County is $80,310,201. The Couniy has $0 in bonds authorized but unissued at June 30, 2012.

Additional information regarding Greene County’s long-term debt can be found in Note II1.B.7 beginning on page 46 of
this audited financial report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
The following key economic indicators reflects the current climate in Greene County.

= The County has experienced a significant increase in its unemployment rate. As of June 30, 2012, the County
unemployment rate was 10.9% as compared with the State average of 9.4%.

s Two phases, 1A and 1F, of the Alternative Waier Project are complete. The project was completed fo meet
Central Coastal Plain Capacity use rules. This pipeline will allow five million galions per day to Farmville and
Greene County. The County began purchasing water from Greenville Utilities Commission in February 2012,

+ Construction for Greene County Intermediate School is near completion. Students began attending the school in
August of 2012,

« Courthouse Renovations are underway with the first phase of the project completed. The Register of Deeds has
moved down to the basement. The Clerk of Court now occupies the first floor, while courtroom renovations will
be completed in 2013,
Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013

Governmental Activities: The expenditures in the General Fund are budgeted to decrease approximately 7%.

« The County's tax rate remains at $.756 per $100 of assessed value and the collection rate remains strong.

10



Management’s Discussion and Analysis {(confinued)
County of Greene

o The County will be issuing bid awards for Phase 1G of the Alternative Water Project in 2013.
Business-type Activities: No rate increases were budgeted except for the alternative water charges in the Utility Fund.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions
concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the
Finance Officer, Greene County, 229 Kingold Blvd. Suite D, Snow Hill, NC 28580. You can also call (252)-747-3448 or
visit our website www.co.greene.nc.us for more information.

11



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROCLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2012

EXHIBIT 1

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and Cash Eguivalenis
Receivables (Net)
Due From Other Governments
Internal Balances
Inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Notes Receivable:

Due within one year

Due in more than one vear
Capital Assets:

Land, Improvements, and Construction in Progress

Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Total Capital Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Uneamed Revenue
Accrued interest Pavable
Customer Deposits
Long-term Liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Resfricted for:
Public Safety
Regisfer of Deeds
Stabilization by State Statute
Human Senices
Capital Qutiay
Alternative Water Suppiy
Capital Projects
Loan Payments to USDA
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmenial Business-type Greene County
Activities Activities Total ABC Board
$2,363,051 $1,486,403 $3,848,454 $184,258
1,086,724 586,292 1,673,016 477
1,252,973 645,625 1,898,498
240,660 (240,660)
120,322
8,181
280,440 6,468,690 6,749,130
125,153 125,153
221,951 221,951
13,456,201 337,382 13,793,583 12,055
15,421,290 39,481,159 54,902,449 13,621
$28,877.491 $39,818,541 $68,606,032 $25,676

$3,030,472
103,363
340,024

378,460

$8,5630,053

35,447
39,410
2,652,703
462 462
142,066

172,800

(3,110,351)

|

$680,562

66,790
131,671

800,149
18,068,890

$22,119,569

5,387,819
907 078

84,128
528,035

$3,711,034
103,353
406,814
131,671

1,178,609

$30,649,622

35,447
39,410
2,652,703
452 462
142,066
5,387,819
907,078
256,928
(2,582,31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General Government $2,636,891 $90,173 $29,097

Public Safety 5,419,322 1,012,356 612,669 $11,252

Environmental Protection 46,206 19,701

Foconomic and Physical Development 623,411 14,937 191,088

Human Services 5,977,704 C4175,229

Cultural and Recreation 361,990 44 525 1,250

Education 2,944,661

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-fype Activities:
Utility Fund (Water and Sewer)
Landfill Fund
Transportation Fund
Total Business-type Activities

Component Unit:
ABC Board
Total Component Unit

329,784

$3,038,436 $2,150,114 $1,079,824 $1,109,142
892,056 897,494

486,080 206,059 354,108
e TR e 50

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purpose
Local Option Sales Taxes
Other Taxes and Licenses
Granis and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Investment Earnings, Unrestricted
Special tem - Donated Asset
Miscellaneous, Unrestricted
Transfers
qualgenfral Revenqgg,MSpqgi

"NefAsset‘s, Beginning

Prior Pericd Adjustment, See Note 111-D
Net Assets, Beginning (Restafed}

NET ASSETS, ENDING

13



EXHIBIT 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmental Business-type Greene County
Activities Activities Total ABC Board

($2,517.621) ($2,617,621)
(3,783,045) (3,783,045)
(26,505) (26,505}
{417,386) (417,386)
(1,802,475) (1,802,475}
{(316,215) (318,215}
(2,944,661} (2,944,661}

($12,137,692)

$1,300,644 $1,300,644
5,438

$1,380,169 ($10,757,523)

$8,496,840 $8,496,840
2,083,912 2,083,912
32,638 32,638
82,585 82,585
2,179 $3.849 6,028 $347
1,026,447 1,026,447
77,139 77,139 172
(278,202) 278,202
$11,523,538

7

$282,051 $11,805,589 $519

fanma
37,094,

(201,693)
36,693,163

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 3

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

Major Non-Major
Intermediate
School Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
General Project Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,672,876 $11,484 $552,581 $2,236,941
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 95,292 185,148 280,440
Receivables, Net 208,096 70,736 978,832
Due From Other Governmenis 974,480 261,360 17,123 1,252,973
Pue From Other Funds 661,925 8,063 669,988
Current Portion - Notes Receivable 125,153 125,153
Notes Receivable 221,951 221,851
TOTAL ASSETS £
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $428,286 $2,311,305 $132,128 $2,871,719
Due to Other Funds 23,284 9,677 396,467 429,328
Unearmed Revenue 103,353 103,353
Deferred Revenue 536,515 52172 588,687
Total Liahilities - 3 = - 3.993.01
Fund Balances:
Resftricted:
Stabilization by State Statute $2,355,100 $261,360 $36,243 $2,652,703
Register of Deeds 39410 39,410
Health Depariment 482,462 452,462
Sheriff Department 38,447 35,447
Capital Outlay 142,066 142,666
USDA Loan Payments 895,202 77,508 172,800
Committed:
Tax Revaluation 106,754 106,754
Assigned:
Special Revenue Funds 449537 449,537
Capital Project Funds {2,309,398) (417,158) (2,726 556)
Unassigned 448,568 448 568
Total Fund Balances g $1,773191
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Amounts reported for governmental activites in the statement of net assets (Exhibit1)
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental acthvities are notfinancial resources and therefore are
not reported in the funds. 28,877,491
Other iong-term assets are not avaiiable to pay for current-period expendifures and therefore
are deferred in the funds. 107,892
Internat Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such
as insurance and telecommunications, fo individual funds. The assets and #iabilifies of certain
internai service funds are included in governmentai activities in the statement of net assets, 19,529
Liabllities for earned but deferred revenues in fund statements, 536,515

Some Habilites, including notes payable, pension obligation and other postemployment benefits,
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds (Note 7).
Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 4

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes
Locai Option Sales Taxes
Other Taxes and Licenses
Unrestricted Intergovernmental
Restrcted Intergovernmental
Permits and Fees
Sales and Senvices
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Government
Public Safety
Emvironmental Protection
Economic and Physical Development
Human Sernvices
CuHural and Recreational
Irifergovernmental:
Education
Capital Qutlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers To Gther Funds
Transfers From Giher Funds
Sale of Fixed Assets
Instaliment Purchase Obligations Issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balances, Beginning

Prior Period Adfustment {See Note 11-D}
Fund Balances, Beginning (Restated)
FUND BAEANCES, ENDING

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Major Non-major
Intermediate Other Total
Schoot Governmental Governmental

General Project Fund Funds Funds
$7,847,425 $608,878 $8,456,303
2,083,812 2,083,912
32,638 32,638
82 585 82,585
4,665 983 316,459 4,082,442
230,835 230,835
876,830 876,830
1,056 1,992
113,804 257,246

$2,304,161
4,274,843
46,206
811,431
5,901,472
426,726

2,944 659

126,273

378,210

$1,265,097

273,828

300,672

$2,304,1861
5,639,840
46,208
1,085,258
5,901,472
426,726

12,896,208
360,872

166,268
43

($1,278,113) _ ($10,051,505) ($819,940) ($12,149,558)
($471,002) {$115,300) ($586,302)
115,300 97,508 308,100
490 490
466,624

9,477,168

($1,633,325) ($371,108)  ($2,950,102)
5,106,378 825,685 4,024,086
(201,693)
5,106,378 623,992 4,723,293
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EXHIBIT 5

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statemment of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds ($2,950,102)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
Howewver, in the Staternent of Activities the cost of those
assels is allocated over their estimated useful lives and .
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Capital outlay expenditures which are capitalized $11,278,106
Depreciation expense for govemmental assets (480,571) 10,797,535

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in
the funds.
Change in deferred revenues for taxes and interest 40,636

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources {o governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of govemnmental funds. Neither transaction has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the Statement of Acthvties.

New Issuances of long term debt ($9,527,167)

Principal payments on fong term debt 166,268

Decrease in accrued interest payable 57,655 {9,303,244)
Net Book Value of Assets Sold {7.035)
Value of Land Donated by County (21,941)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental

funds.
Compensated absences ($6,768)
Net pension obligation {20,909}
Other postemployment benefits {173,046)
Net gain of intemal senice fund determined to be
govermnmental-type 4,373
Special ltems - Greene County Library Donated Asset 1,026,447 830,097

Total Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT &

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance with

Original Final Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues:

Ad Valorem Taxes $7,999,353 $8,030,553 $7,847 425 {$183,128)
Local Option Sales Taxes 1,970,012 2,026,012 2,083,912 83,900
Other Taxes and Licenses 78,000 78,600 32,638 {45,362)
Unresfricted Intergovernmental 83,000 83,000 82,585 (415}
Resfricted Intergovernmental 5,808,301 6,110,838 4,665,983 {1,444 856)
Permits and Fees 250,600 250,900 230,835 {20,065}
Sales and Services 1,610,837 1,457 630 876,830 (580,800}
Invesiment Earnings 60,300 60,300 1,056 {59,244)
Miscellaneous 568,819 629,202 113,604

Total Revenues

9

(515,598)

5568

Expenditures:
Current;
General Government $2,213,084 $2,405,240 $2,304,161 $101,079
Public Safety 4,772,336 4,507 586 4274843 232,743
Environmental Protection 54,220 54,220 46,206 8,014
Economic and Physical Development 205,529 848,661 811,431 37,230
Human Services 6,271,448 5,666,595 5,801,472 765,123
Cultural and Recreational 461,376 444,938 426,726 18,212
Infergovernmental:
Education 2,991,185 2,945 8083 2,944,659 1,234
Debf Service:
Principal Retirement 164,713 235240 125,273 109,967
Interest 433,529

Total Expenditures
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Usesj:

395,584

Transfers To Other Funds ($304,702) ($471,502) ($471,002) $500
Transfers From Other Funds 107,900 115,300 115,300

Sale of Fixed Assets 15,000 15,000 490 (14,510)
Fund Balance Appropriated 104,723 {(104,723)

Capital Lease Obligations Issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balances:
Beginning of Year, July 1

End of Year, June 30

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2612

EXHIBIT 7

ASSETS
Current Assels;
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Due From Other Governments
Due From Other Funds
‘Fotal Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Resfricted Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Capital Assets:
Land, improvements, and Consfruction in Progress
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
Total Capital Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABHITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Current Liabilifies:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilifies
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Interest Payable
Customer Deposits
Insialiment Purchase Contract Payabie
Clean Water Bond Loan Payable
General Otligation indebtedness
DWSRF Revolving Loan
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilifies:
Landfill Closure and Posiclosure Care Costs
Compensated Absences
Other Postemployment Benefits
instaltment Purchase Contract Payable
Clean Water Bond Loan Payable
Generai Obligation Indebtedness
DWSRF Revolving Loan
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABLITIES

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, Netof Related Debt
Reasfricted for Alternative Water Supply
Resfricted for Capilal Projects
Restricted for USDALoan Payments
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Enterprise Funds

Major Fund Major Fund Non-major Fund

Internal

Utility Landfill Transportation Totals Service Fund
$1,244,993 $161,790 §79,620 $1,486,403 $126,110
536,700 49,592 586,292
567,896 54,435 23,194 645,625
811,725 15,221 826,946
66
$6,468 690 $6,468,690
178,847 $158,434 337,381
39,033,653 134,854 $312,753 39,481,160
$39,212,500 $293,288 $312,753 $39,818,541 $0
$45,681,190 $293,288 $312,753 $0

$659,790
918,080
66,790
131,671
476,917
172,232
76,000
75,000

$14,560
90,767

$6,212
58,759

$680,662
1,067,606
66,790
131,671
478,917
172,232
78,0600
75,600

$106,581

$37,498
57,350
1,238,499
1,722,324
12,663,000
1,275,600

$21,513,528
5,387,819
907,078
84,128
1,379,800

$996,343
15,358
20,072

$203,288

(856,062)

$24,811
8,735

$312,753

$996,343
77,867
86,157
1,238,499
1,722,324
12,663,000
1,275,000

$22,119,669
5,387,819
907,078
84,128
528,035

$19,529



EXHIBIT 8

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Enterprise Funds

Major Fund  Major Fund Non-major Fund Internal
Lhility Landfilf Transportation Totals Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Water and Sewer Sales $1,781,064 $1,781,084
Water and Sewer Tap Fees and Senice Charges 43,187 43,187
Landfill Fees $897,494 897,494
County Contributions $1,586,630
Other Operating Revenues 325,863 $206,059 531,922
Total Operating Revenues & 0597
OPERATING EXPENSES
Sataries and Employee Benefits $495,156 $104,026 $312,313 $1,001,495
Supplies and Fuel 209,504 44,924 77,871 332,299
Maintenance 115,662 110,748 27113 253,523
Contracted Services 138,049 313,894 451,043
Professional Sernvices 49,840 17,289 67,129
Water Purchased 172,422 172,422
Management Fee - County 25,000 25,000
Utilities 143,528 13,891 1,891 158,410
Sewer Charges - Town of Farmville 185,369 185,369
Office Expense 55,243 11,893 67,236
Insurance 21,724 7,531 29,255
Telephone and Postage : 5,058 2,400 7,467
Miscellaneous 267 4,587 3,889 8,743
Disposal Fees 133,256 133,256
Capital Outlay (Under Threshold) 357 367
Medical Claims $1,582,444
Depreciation
Total Cperating Expense

Operating Income {(Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES}

Interest and Investment Revenue $3,762 $50 $37 $3,849 $187
Alternative Water Supply Fees - County 677,527 677,627
Alternative Water Supply Fees - Towns & Districts 402,297 402,297

Intereston Long-Term Debt
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)

(625,492)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers $195,264 $5,488 {$279,984) {$79,232} $4,373

Transfers (To) From Other Funds 278,202 278,202
Capital Contributions 1,109,142 354,108 1,463,250
Change in Net Assets $1,582,608 $5,488 $74,124 $1,662,220 $4,373

Total Net Assets, Beginning 27,689,745 {568,262) 242926 27,364 409 15,156
Total Net Assets, Ending : &1 = o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXHIBIT 9

Page1of2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Enterprise Funds
Major Fund  Major Fund Non-major Fund Internal
Utifity Landfitl Transportation Totals Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received From Customers $1,802,099 $1,047,398 $198,772  $3048270  $1586,830
Cash Paid for Geods and Services (1.073,184) {877,762) {125935) (1.876.881) (1,527641)
Cash Paid fo Employees for Services (474,406) {187,008) {367,359) (968,770)
Customer Deposits Received 28,340 28,340
Customer Deposits Returned (23,611) (23,511)
Other Opsrating Revenues 325,863 325,863

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in (Repayment of) Due to Other Funds
Aternative Water Supply Fees
Transfers (To} From Other Funds
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisiion and Construction of Capital Assets
Temporary Financing issued
Inferest Paid On Indebtedness
Principal Paid On indebfedness
Capital Contributions-Sfate and Federat Grants

Net Cash Provided by {Used by) Capital and

Related Financing Activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
intereston investments

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivaienis, July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 38

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION:
Cash consists of the following:
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Customer Deposits
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Alternative Water Supply
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - GUC Watetline Phase 1A
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - GUC Waterline Phase 1C
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - USDA Loan Payments

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

($113,000)
1,004,270
278,202

{32,613)

($575138)  ($54,500) ($158,812)
284,545
(608,491)
(781,991)

1,129,487 354,108

($115613)
1,004,270
278,202

($788,450)
284,545
(608,491)
(781,891)

1,483 595

$1,206,847 $125,569 ($39,189)

6,506,836 36,221 118,809

$1,203,227 $59,176

6,661,866 66,934

$1,160,865
131,671
5,345,813
408,665
582,541
84,128

$161,790 $79,620

$1,402,275
131,671
5,345,613
408,665
582,541

$126,110

84,128

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



EXHIBIT 9

Page 2 of 2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Enterprise Funds
Major Fund Major Fund Non-major Fund Internal
Utitity Landfill Transportation Totals Service Fund
Reconciliation of Operafing Income {Loss) fo Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activifies
Operatling Income (Loss) ($262,830) $5,438 ($280,021) ($537,413) $4,186
Adjustments fo Reconcile Operaling income (Loss) fo Net Cash
Provided by Operating Aclivilies:
Depreciation $800,823 $46,752 $48,601 $896,178
Changes in Assefs and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable (12,152} 3,048 (9,104)
Decrease (Increase) in Due From Other Governments (10,000} 146,857 (7.287) 129,570
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabitifies 43,782 (26,484) (770) 16,528 $54,803
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 4,829 4,829
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable 4,583 1,786 2,584 8,953
Increase (Decrease) in Other Postemployment Benefits 16,166 5,235 2,371 23,772
Totat Adjustments $848,031 $177,194 $45,499 $1,070,724 $54,803

Net Cash Provided by {Used by) Operating Activities

R

9
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

EXHIBIT 10

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due From Other Governments

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Intergovernmental Payable

Total Liabilities

Nef Assefs:
Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

Agency
Funds

$166,841
9,419

$176,260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i~or the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Greene County and its component units conform to generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The County, which is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100 counties established
tnh North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-10. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, these financial statements present the County and its component units, legally separate entities for
which the County is financially accountable. Greene County Water & Sewer Disirict | {the District) exists to
provide and maintain sewer service for the school system and County residents within the district. The District
has been combined with the Utility Fund in the County's financiat statements. Effective the 2006 - 2007 fiscal
vear, the County changed the name of its Regional Water Fund to the Greene County Utility Fund and has begun
offering both water and sewer services in the specific District area. The Greene County Industrial Facility and
Pollution Control Financing Authority (the Authorify) exists fo issue and service revenue bond debt of private
businesses for economic development purposes. The Authority has no financial transactions or account
baiances; therefore, it is not presented in the basic financial statements. The Greene County ABC Board (the
Board), which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it Is a separate proprietary fund of the County (discrete
presentation). The blended presentation method presents componeni units as a department or unit of the
County, and offers no separate presentation as with the discrete methed.

Component Unit | Reporting Criteria for Inclusion Separate Financial
Method Statements
Greene County Under State law [NCGS 162A-89], the County's
Water & Sewer Blended board of commissioners also serve as the governing None issued
District | board for the District.
Greene County The Authority is governed by a seven-member board
industrial Discrete | of commissioners that is appointed by the county None issued
Facility and commissioners. The County can remove any
Pollution Control commissioner of the Authority with or without cause.
Financing
Authority
The members of the ABC Board’s governing board Greene County
Greene County Discrete | are appointed by the County. The ABC Board is ABC Board
ABC Board required by State statute to distribute its surpluses to | 217 SE Second St
the General Fund of the County. Snow Hill, NC 28580

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus — Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Staternents: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information
about the primary government (the County) and its component units. These statements include the financial
activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-fype
activities of the County. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been
reversed for the Statement of Activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues,

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds,
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category —
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange fransactions.
Other non-operating items such as invesiment earnings are ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — This is the County’s primary operating fund. it accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Intermediate School Capital Project Fund — This fund is used to account for the consfruction of the new
Intermediate School.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

Utility Fund — This fund is used to account for the operations of the water and sewer system within the County.

Landfilf Fund - This fund is used to account for the operation of the County's solid waste landfill, Scrap Tire
Disposal and White Goods Disposal.

The County reporis the following fund types:

Debt Service Funds — The governmental Debt Service Fund and the Utility Debt Reserve Fund are used fo
account for moneys restricted by USDA loan covenants for future debt payments.

Infernal Service Fund - The ASO-Self Funded Medical Insurance Fund is used to account for moneys collected
from employer and employees and to account for said employees, their spouses and dependents.

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results.
Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on hehalf of others. The County maintains five
Agency Funds; the Municipal Tax Fund, which accounts for motor vehicle property taxes that are billed and
collected by the County for the various municipalities within the County; the Social Services Fund, which accounis
for moneys deposited with the Department of Scocial Services for the benefit of certain individuals; the Jail Inmate
Fund which accounts for funds held on behalf of the inmates of the Greene County Jail; the Fines and Forfeitures
Fund, which accounts for various legal fines and forfeitures that the County is required fo remit to Greene County
Board of Education and the three percent interest on the first month of delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the
County is required to remit to the North Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles; and the South Greene Water
Collection Fund which accounts for water funds collected and remitted under a confract basis on behalf of South
Greene Water Corporation.

Nonrmajor Funds ~ The County maintains nine legally hudgeted funds. The Fire District Funds, the Property
Revaluation Fund, the Emergency Telephone System Fund, the April 2011 Tornade Fund, the 2009 Community
Development Block Grant Project Fund, and the Hurricane Irene Fund are reported as non-major special revenue
funds.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The School Capital Finance Fund, the American Prawn Cooperative Project Fund and the Courthouse
Renovations Project Fund are reported as capital project funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, ali funds of the County are maintained during the year using
the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, except
for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary
fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows
take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving
(or giving) egual value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entilements, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entilements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generaily result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds
are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also recognizes as operating revenue the portion
of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not susceptible
to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be an available
resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the
procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina.
Effective with this change in the law, Greene County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on
all registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County. For those motor
vehicles registered under the staggered system and for vehicles newly registered under the annual system,
property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are
applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered from March 2011
through February 2012 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Uncollected taxes that were billed during
this period are shown as a receivable on these financial statements.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilifies franchise tax, collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and
services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable uniif recelved in cash.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and
all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement granis, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the County’s
policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categoricai biock grants,
and then by general revenues,

Alt governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the County follow FASB Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

C. BUDGETARY DATA

The County's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is
adopted for the General Fund, the Fire Districts Funds, Property Revaluation Fund, Emergency Telephone
System Fund, the April 2011 Tornado Fund, the Hurricane Irene Fund, the School Capital Finance Fund, and the
Enterprise Funds. Al annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Project ordinances are adopted for the
2009 CDBG Special Revenue Fund, the Courthouse Renovations Project Fund, the American Prawn
Cooperative Project Fund, the intermediate School Project Fund and the Enterprise Capital Projects Funds,
which are consolidated with the enterprise operating funds for reporting purposes.

All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations at the functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the project level for the multi-year
funds. Amendments are required for any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change
functional appropriations by more than $5,000. The governing board must approve all amendments. During the
vear, several amendments to the original budget were necessary. In the General Fund, revenues and
expenditures were increased by $403,337 due to budget amendments. In the Special Revenue Funds, revenues
and expenditures were increased $191,629 due to budget amendments. In the Enterprise Funds, revenues and
expenditures were increased $1,427,.447. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or
the governing board must adopf an interim budget that covers that time untit the annual ordinance can be
adopted.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND EQUITY

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the County and Greene County ABC Board are made in board-designated official depositories
and are secured as required by G.8. 159-31. The County and the ABC Board may designate, as an official
depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the
County and the ABC Board may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposit,

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the United
States or obligations fully guaranteed hoth as to principal and interest by the United States; obtigations of the
State of North Caroling; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority;
obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and
bankers’ acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).

27



GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The County and the ABC Board’s investments are carried at fair value as determined by quoled market
prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund,
are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are
valued at fair value. Money market Investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of
one year or less are reported at amortized cost.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County pools moneys from several funds to facilitate dishursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents. Greene County ABC Board considers demand deposits and
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less, which are not limfted as to use, to be
cash and cash equivalents,

Restricted Assets

There is $5,345,813 in the Utility Alternative Water Supply Fund. These funds are shown as restricted due to
the use of these funds being restricted solely for addressing future Alternative Water Supply needs. In
addition, there is $907,078 in unexpended Water Construction Project funds that is resiricted to the purpose
for which it was borrowed or received. Customer deposits in the amount of $131,671 held by the county
before any services are supplied are restricted to the service for which the deposit was collected. Money in
the Tax Revaluation Fund in the amount of $106,759 is classified as resiricted assets because its use is
restricted per NC G.S. 153-A-150. Money in the School Capital Projects Fund in the amount of $881 is
classified as restricted assets because its use is restricted per NC G.S. 159-18 through 22. Money in the
amounts of $172,800 for Governmental Activities and $84,128 for Business-type Activities are restricted for
principal payments on loans with USDA that require reserves to be set aside.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.5. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes on
property other than mofor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on
September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following Jahuary 6. These
taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2011. As allowed by State law, the County has
established a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes that are paid prior o the due date. In the County's
General Fund, ad valorem {ax revenues are reporied net of such discounis.

. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior
years.

Inventories and Prepaid ltems

The inventory of the ABC Board is valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. This
inventory consists of items heid for resale. The cost of the inventory in the ABC Board is recorded as an
expense as it Is sold.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting pertiods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

8. Capital Assetfs

9.

10.

Purchased or consiructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Minimum capitalization costs are as
follows: land, $1; Buildings, improvements, substations, lines and other plant and distribution systems,
$5,000; infrastructure, $5,000; furniture and equipment, $5,000; vehicles, $5,000; and Computer Equipment
and Software, $5,000. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

The County holds title to certain Greene County Board of Education properties that have not been included in
capital assets. The properties have been deeded fo the County to permit installment purchase financing of
acquisition and construction costs and to permit the County to receive refunds of sales tax paid for
construction costs. Agreements between the County and the Board of Education give the Board of
Education full use of the facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of the facilities, and provide that the
County will convey title to the properly back to the Board of Education, once all restrictions of the financing
agreements and all safes tax reimbursement requirements have been met. The properties are reflected as
capital assets in the financial statements of the Greene County Board of Education.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings 50
Distribution Systems 50
improvements 25
Furniture and Equipment 10
Vehicles and Motorized Equipment 5
Computer Equipment and Software 5

Capital assets of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-ine basis as follows:

Years
Buildings 30-40
Furniture and Equipment 10

Long-Term Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reporied as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as
an other financing source.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County and the ABC Board provide for the accumulation of up to thirty days
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County's government-wide
and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments
are recorded as the leave is earned. For the ABC Board, the amount is not deemed to be materiat.

The sick leave poiicies of the County and the ABC Board provide for an unlimited accumulation of earned
sick leave. Sick feave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may
be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since neither the County
nor the ABC Board has any obligation for accumutated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick
leave has been made by the County or its component unit.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

11. Net Assets/Fund Balances
Net Assets
Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debf; resiricted; and unrestricied. Restricted net assets represent constraints on
resources that are either a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or b} imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances

fn the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to
disclose the hierarchy of consiraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legaily or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Inventories — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-end
balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable rescurces. The County has no inventory in any
of the Governmental Funds.

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes revenue sources that are resiricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by faw.

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute — portion of fund balance that is restricted by State Statute
[G.S. 159-8(a)].

Restricted for Register of Deeds — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source to pay for
the computer equipment and imaging technology for the Register of Deeds office.

Restricted for Health Department — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source fo provide
resources for the Health Depariment.

Restricted for Sheriff Department — portion of fund balance that is restricted by federal statute to Law
Erforcement expenditures.

Restricted for Capital Outlay - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for future
capital projects.

Restricted for USDA Loan Payments — portion of fund balance that is restricted by debt covenants with
USDA for future payments on Long-term Debt.

Committed Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purpose imposed by
majority vote of Greene County's governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). Any changes
or removal of specific purposes requires majority action by the governing body.

Committed for Tax Revaluation — Portion of fund balance that can only be used for Tax Revaluation.

Assigned Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that the County governing hoard has budgeted.

Assigned for Special Revenue Funds — portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the board for
special revenue funds.
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Assigned for Capital Project Funds — portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the board for
capital project funds.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance that has not been resiricted, committed, or assigned to
specific purposes or other funds.

Greene County has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue
sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds,
State funds, local non-city funds, and county funds. For purposes of fund balance classification,
expenditures are 1o be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by committed fund balance,
assigned fund balance, and lastly, unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has the authority to
deviate from this policy if it’s in the best interest of the County.

E. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental
funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets.
The net adjustment of $7,141,399 consisis of several elements as follows:

Description Amount

Capilal assets used in governmental aclivities are notfinancial resources
and are therefore not reporied in the funds (lotal capital assets on

government-wide statement in governmental activities column) $34,458,159
Less Accumulated Depreciation 5,680,668
Net Capital Assets $28,877 491

Accrued interest receivable less the amount claimed as unearned revenue in
the government-wide statements as these funds are not available and
therefore deferred in the fund statements 107,892

Liabilittes for revenue deferred but earned and therefore reported in the fund
statements but not the government-wide statements
Taxes 536,515

Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period,
do not require current rescurces to pay and are therefore not reported in the
fund statements:

Loans, notes, and insfallment financing {20,627,818)
Compensated absences {411,646)
Net pension obligation for iaw enforcement officers' special separation allowance {157,237}
Net other postemployment benefits {863,203)
Accrued interest payable {340,024)

Net gain of internal service fund determined 10 be governmental-type
Total Adjustment
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B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the governmeni-wide statement of aclivities. There are several
elements of that totat adjustment of $2,335,948 as follows:

Description Amount
Capital outlay expendiiures recorded in the fund statements but
capitalized as assets in the statement of activities $11,278,108

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assels over their useful lives,
thatis recorded on the statement of acthviies butnotin the fund statements (480,571)

New debtissued during the year is recorded as a source of funds on the fund
statements; ithas no effect on the statements of aclivities - it affecis only the
government-wide statement of netassets (9,527,167)

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund
statements butagain affect only the statementof net assets in the
government-wide statements 166,268

Expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of
current resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements.
Difference in interest expense between fund statements {modified accrual) and

government-wide statements (full accrual) 57,658
Net book value of assets sold (7,035}
Value of Land Donated by County (21,241}

Compensated absences are accrued in the governmentwide statements but not
in the fund statements because they do not use current resources {6,768)

Net pension cbligation is accrued in the government-wide statements but notthe
fund statements because it does notuse current resources (20,909}

Net other posiemployment benefits obligation is accrued in the government-wide

statements but nofthe fund statements because it does not use current resources {173,046}
Net gain of internal senice fund determined to be governmental- type 4,373
Special item - Greene County Library Donated Asset 1,026,447

Revenues reported in the statement of activities that do not provide current

resources are notrecorded as revenues in the fund statements
Reversal of deferred taxrevenue recorded at 7/01/11 {506,422)
Recording of tax receipts deferred in the fund statements as of 6/30M12 536,515
Increase in accrued interest on taxes receivable for year ended 6/30/12 443

Totai Adjustment

Il. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. SIGNIFICANT VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes

None noted.
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B. DEFICIT FUND BALANCE OR NET ASSETS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

1.

The Intermediate School Capital Project Fund and the Courthouse Renovations Capital Project Fund have
deficit fund balances of ($2,048,038) and ($410,889), respectively, as of June 30, 2012 due to timing of loan
draws in relation to project expenditures. Loan draws usually come in after expenditures have been incurred.
The County does not anticipate having a deficit fund balance in these funds at the completion of the projects.

The Enterprise Fund net assets consist of the following individual fund net asset balances:
Utility Fund $20,188,225
Landfili Fund (562,774} *

Transportation Fund

Effective July 1, 2009, the County reduced the number of hours of service, thereby reducing the aftendants’
contracts. It was anticipated that this change should allow the Landfill Fund to at least begin to break even.

C. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the County’s expenditures have exceeded amounts budgeted in the
following funds and departments:

Final Over
Budget Actual Budget
Utility Fund
Debt Senice $1,198,084 $1,202,786 ($4,702)
Alternative Water Supply Fund {(Operating Transfer Qut) $470,000 $677,527 ($207,527)
Utility Alternative Water Supply Capital Reserve Fund
Debt Service - Phase 10 interest Payments $187,898 $207 489 ($19,793)

These over-expenditures occurred because budget amendments were not adopted in a timely manner for certain
expenditures. Management will more closely review the budget reports to ensure compliance in future years.

lil. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. ASSETS
1. Deposits

All of the County's and the ABC Board's deposits are either insured or coliateralized by using one of two
methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal deposifory insurance coverage level
are collateralized-with securities held by the County's or the ABC Board's agents in these units' names. Under
the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are coliateralized with securities held by
the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a
fiduciary capacity for the County and the ABC Board, these deposits are considered to be held by their agents
in the entities’ names. The amount of the pledged coliateral is based on an approved averaging method for
non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using
the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the interest adequacy of their pooled collateral covering
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does notf confirm this information with the County or the ABC Board
or with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the
County or the ABC Board under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collaterization, and this risk
may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict
standards of financial stability for each deposlitory that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooiling Method.
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The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions.
The County and the ABC Board rely on the State Treasurer fo monitor these financial institutions. The County
analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial institution used by the County. The County complies
with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are
properly secured. The County and the ABC Board do not have formal policies regarding custodial credit risks
for deposits.

At June 30, 2012, the County's deposits had a carrying amount of $3,682,245 and a bank balance of
$3,805,914. Of the bank balance, $2,658,037 was covered by federal depository insurance and $1,147,877
was covered by coilateral held under the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2012, Greene County had $1,923 cash on hand.

At June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of deposits for Greene County ABC Board was $153,658 and the bank
balance was $151,628. Of this balance, $151,528 was covered by federal depository insurance and no
balance was maintained in finangial institutions utilizing the Pooling Method of coliaterafization.

At June 30, 2012, the ABC Board had $600 cash on hand.
Investments

At June 30, 2012, the County's investment balances were as follows:

Reported Value Fair Value
NC Capital Management Trust - General Account $5,087,110 $5,987,110

NC Capttal Management Trust - Altemative Water Project Phase 1A 1,084,147 1,084,147
Total investments 4 :

The NC Capitai Management Trust's cash portiolio carries a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.
The County has no policy regarding credit risk. At June 30, 2012, the ABC Board had no investments in the
North Carolina Capital Management Trust.

3. Property Tax - Use-Value Assessment on Certain Lands

In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the County
at the present-use vaiue as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility for use-value
taxation, the property tax is recomputed at market value for the current year and the three preceding fiscal
years, along with the accrued interest from the original due date. This tax is immediately due and payable.
The following are property taxes that could become due if present use-value eligibility is lost. These amounts
kave not been recorded in the financial statements.

Year Levied Tax Interest Total
2008 $447,020 $146,399 £593,419
2008 458,172 108,816 566,988
2010 460,087 67,863 527,950
2011 49 26,58 4

Total 3
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4, Receivables

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2012, were as follows:

Taxes and
Related Due From
Accrued Other
Accounts Interest Governments Total
Governmental Activities:
General $608,185 $785,804 $974,430 $2,368,489
Other Governmental 18,120 51,616 278,483 349,219
Total Receivables $627,315 $837.420 $1,252973 $2,717,708

Allowance for Doubtful Accounis
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activifies:

378,011

Utitity Fund $618,700 $567,896 $1,186,596

Landfili Fund 7,665 $77.927 54,435 140,027

Nonmajor Enterprise Acthvities 23,194 23,194
Total Receivables $626,365 §77.827 $645,525 $1,349,817
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (82,000) (36,000) L000)

Total Business-type Activities

5

The due from other governments that is owed to the County consists of the following:

tocal Option Sales Tax $356,581
Sales Tax 345,754
Various Human Senice Revenues 526,200
SBOE Primary Grant 4,647
Soil and Water Technical Assistance 18,701

Total General Fund $1.252,973
Scrap TFire Tax $6,658
White Goods 1,686
Solid Waste 3,604
Town of Snow Hill - Hurmicane Irene Debris 38,067
Town of Snow Hill - Landfll Fees 1,237
Town of Hookerton - Landfill Fees 78
Transportation Grants 22,704
Alternative Water Supply Fees 42,606
Joint Deposit - Town of Farmuille 10,000
Sales Tax 32,785
DWSRF Funds 486,680

Total Enterprise Fund §645,525

Total Due

5. Notes Receivable

=
oy

(118

g

The County has six loans from Global Transpark Development Zone Loan Funds. The purpose of the loans
is to increase the County tax base and create jobs. The subsequent repayment of these loans will likewise
be restricted.

The first loan was made on March 19, 2002 to Ham Produce, Inc. for $475,000. Ham Produce, Inc. is a large
farming operation and has used the funds to acquire additional product storage space within the County. The
terms of the loan call for quarterly payments of $14,713 for ten years, including interest at 4.5% and was paid
off on March 9, 2012.

35



GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CARCOLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The second loan was made on May 22, 2002 fo Maury Properties, LLC for $175,000. Maury Properties, LLC
is a construction company and has used the funds to expand its present location within the County. The
terms of the loan call for quarterly payments of $5,403 for ten years, including interest at 4.5% and was paid
off on March 3¢, 2012.

The third loan was made on September 29, 2004 to NWL Capacitators for $250,000. NWL operates an
electronic capacitator manufacturing facility. NWL has used the funds to expand their building. The terms of
the loan call for 60 payments of 5,373 for 15 years, including interest at 3.5%.

The fourth loan was made on November 9, 2007 to Moore’s Fiberglass for $140,000. Moore's Fiberglass is a
trade contractor that intends {o use the funds to create additional jobs. The terms of the loan call for 28
quarterly payments of $5,829 for 7 years, including interest at 4.75%.

The fifth loan was made on May 20, 2009 to Vandiford's Country Kitchen for $100,000.  Vandiford's operated
a dining facllity that relocated to Snow Hill from Hookerion. The terms of the loan call for 1 inferest-only
payment and 19 quarterly paymenis of principal and interest of $5,875 for 4% years, including interest at
4.50%. As of June 30, 2011, Vandiford’s had made only one paymernt. Notice had been given to Vandiford's
to bring the loan current by January 1, 2011. i the loan was not brought current by that date foreclosure
proceedings will be initiated. On April 12, 2011, order to sale secured collateral was recorded in Lenoir County.
No sale has occurred as of report date for June 30, 2012,

The sixth loan was made on April 9, 2012 to Ribeye's Steakhouse for $50,000. Ribeye's is a local restaurant
that intends to use the funds to relocate to the former Vandiford’s Country Kitchen building. The terms of the
toan call for 20 quarterly payments of $2,793 for 5 years, including interest at 4.5%.

The following summarizes the expected collection on these notes:
Principal

Amounts Due
For the Year

Ended NwL Moore's

June 30, Capacitators Fiberglass Vandiford's Ribeye's Total
2013 16,753 $21,201 $78,014 $9,185 $125,153
2014 17,433 22227 17,236 9,606 66,502
2015 18,141 17,373 10,045 45,5659
2016 18,878 10,505 29,383
2017 8,193

2018-2020

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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6. Capital Assels

Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $650,023 $21,841 $628,982

Construction in Progress 1,908,246 $11,059,173

231,200 12,827,219
Toial Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 059 ‘

3253,

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buildings & Land Improvements $16,867,913 $1,257,647 $18,125,560
Vehicles 1,167,685 75,100 $28,720 1,214,075

Equipment 1,647,767 143,833 29,277 1,662,323
Total Capital Asseis Being Depreciated S 80557907
Less Accumulated Depreciation for;

i

Buildings & Land Improvements $2,854,753 $355,240 $3,209,993
Vehicles 956,729 67,366 $21,685 1,002410
Equipment 1,339,677 57,965 29,277 1,368,285

Total Accumulated Bepreciation $5,151,059 ¢
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 8
Governmental Activity Capital Assets, Net

$5,580,668
421,290

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Government $296,844
Public Safety 95,195
Human Services 16,185
Cultural and Recreational 72,337

Total Depreciation Expense

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

37



GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business Type Activities: Beginning Ending
Greene County Utility Fund: Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $180,768 $9,180 $176,948
Construction In Progress

Total Capital Assels Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

13,703,156 1,072,152 $14,775,308
2924

Transfer Distribution Systems $30,596,840 $14,775,308 $45,372,148
Eguipment 228,078 228,078
Vehicles 231,159 15,794 246,953

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Transfer Distribution Systems $5,621,257 $780.649 $6,401,906
Equipment 179,269 10,827 190,086
Vehicies

Total Accumu!éted Depreciation
Tolal Capital Assets Being Depreciafed, Net
Greene County Utility Fund Capital Assets, Net

Greene County Landfill Fund:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land and Improvements
Tofal Capital Assets Not Being Deprecialed
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

212,278 9,347 221,625
$6,012,804 = $6,813,627
39,033,552

$158,434 $158,434

Buildings $108,102 3108102
Vehicles 279,245 279,245
Equipment 492,490 $54,500 546,990

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings $108,300 $1,022 $107.322
Vehicles 209,909 229,975
Equipment 436,522 462,186
Total Accumulated Depreciation $752,731 $799.483

Tofal Capital Assets Being Deprecialed, Net
Greene County Landfill Capital Assets, Net

Greene County Transportation Fund:
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buildings $168,900 $169,900
Vehicles 334,905 $158,812 $87,549 406,168
Equipment 11, 11,466

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings $34,223 $8,408 $42,718
Vehicles 268,041 40,106 $87,549 220,598
Equipment 11,465 11,465

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assels Being Depreciated, Net

Greene County Transportation Fund Capital Assets, Net

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net

$313,729 : - $274,781
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Construction Commitments

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2012. The projects include the Intermediate
School project and the Alternative Water Phase 1C, and 1F projects. At June 30, 2012, the Government's

commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent to Date Commitment
Intermediate School $11,802,312 $1,398,000
Courthouse Renovations 570,086 209,000
11,748,695 774,000

Altermative Water Phase 1C
Alternative Water Phase 1F
Total

Discretely Presented Component Unit
Activity for the ABC Board for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

3,026,614

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land
Total Assets Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buiidings $40,042 $49,942
Equipment 48,917 $3,000 51,917

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated )
Less Accumulated Depreciation for: :

Buildings $49,842 $49,942
Equipment 35,402 $2,894 38,206

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net

B. LIABILITIES

1. Payables
Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2012, were as follows:

Acerued
Vendors Interest Other Total
Governmental Activities:
General $587,039 $340,024 $927.063
Other Governmental 2,443 433

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Utiliy Fund $659,790 $66,790 $726,580
Landfill Fund 14,560 14,560
Nonmajor Enterprise Activities 6,212 6,212

Total Business-type Activities
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2. Pension Plan Obligations and Other Postemployment Benefits

a.

b.

Local Governmental Employvee's Retirement System

Pilan Description. Greene County and the ABC Board confribute {o the statewide Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State of North Carolina. 1.GERS provides retirement and disability benefits o plan
members and beneficlaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’
Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of
North Carolina. The State’'s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to confribute six (6) percent of their annual covered salary.
The County and the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the
County, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is
7.02% and 7.05%, respectively, of annual covered payroll. For the ABC Board, the current rate for
employees not engaged In law enforcement is 6.94% of annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of members and of the County and the ABC Board are established and may be amended by
the North Carolina General Assembly. The County’s confributions to LGERS for the years ended June
30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $371,176, $390,020, and $286,853, respectively. The ABC Board's
contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $1,426, $1,248, and
$934, respectively. The contributions made by the County and the ABC Board equaled the required
contributions for each year.

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

1. Plan Description

Greene County administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Alfowance™, a single
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County's qualified sworn
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85% of the annual equivalent of the
hase rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service.
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be
authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapler 143 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions o the North Carolina General Assembly.

Al full-time County faw enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December
31, 2011, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Retirees Receiving Benefits
Terminated Plan Members Entitled but not yet Receiving Benefits
Active Plan Members

Total

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting. The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go
basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Method Used to Value Investments. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration cosis.
These expenditures are paid as they come due.
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3. Contributions

The County is required by Articte 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay-as-you-go basis through appropriations made in the
General Fund operating budget. For the current year, the County contributed $0, or 0% of annual
covered payroill. The County's obligation to contribute fo this plan is established and may be amended
by the North Carolina General Assembly.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2011
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 5.00% Investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary
increases of 4.25% to 7.85% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.00%. The
assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using the market value of investments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization
period at December 31, 2011 was 19 years,

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The County's annual pension cost and net
pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual Required Coniribution $22,226

interest on Net Pension Obligation 6,816

Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (8,133)

Annual Pension Cost $20,909
Contributions Made

Increase {Decrease) in Net Pension Obligation $20,909

Net Pension Obligation - Beginning of Year 136,328

T

Net Pension Obligafion - End of Year

Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APC) APC Contribution Obligation
6/30/10 $14,230 0.00% $116,082
6/30/11 $20,246 0.00% $136,328
6/30/12 $20,909 0.00% $157,237

4. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0 percent funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $145,568 and the actuarial value of assets was $0,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued lizbility (UAAL) of $145,568. The covered payroll {(annual

payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $812,285, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 17.92 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents muliiyear frend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time refative fo the actuarial accrued liabllity
for benefiis.
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C.

e,

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for L aw Enforcement Officers

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Refirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined
confribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The
Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.S.
Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR
includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that
includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mall Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina
27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454,

Funding Poficy. Article 12E of G.8. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount
equal fo five percent of each officer’s satary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the
taw enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the Plan. Contributions for the year ended
June 30, 2012 were $98,082, which consisted of $52,978 from the County and $45,104 from the law
enforcement officers.

Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description. (Greene County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension
Fund (“Fund™, a noncontributory, defined contribution pension plan administered by the North Carolina
Department of State Treasurer. The Fund provides supplemental pension benefits to any eligible county
register of deeds who is retired under the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) or
an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapfer 161 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Register of Deeds’
Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Regisiers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27689-1410,
or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount
equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Ariicle 1 of G.S.
161. Immediately following January 1 of each year, the Department of Siale Treasurer divides ninety-
three percent (93%!) of the amount in the Fund at the end of the preceding calendar year into equal
shares to be disbursed as monthly benefits. The remaining seven percent {7%) of the Fund's assets
may be used by the State Treasurer in administering the Fund. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012,
the County's required and actual contributions were $932.

Other Post-Employment Benefit

1. Fealthcare Bensfits

Plan Description. Under the terms of a County resolution, the County administers a single-employer
defined Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HCB plan). As of November 5, 2001, this plan provides
postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees of the County, provided they participate in the Local
Government Employees’ Retirement System (System) and have at least five (5) years of creditable
service with the County. Prior to November 5, 2001, employees were not qualified for benefits. The
County pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits through private insurers. The County's
retirees cannot purchase additional coverage for their dependents at the County’s group rates. The
Board of Commissioners may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not issued for the
plan.
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Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2010, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retirees and Dependents Receiving Benefits
Terminated Plan Members Entitled but not vet Recelving Benefits
Active Plan Members

Total

Funding Policy. The County pays the full cost of coverage for the heaithcare benefits paid to
gualified retirees under a County resolution that can be amended by the Board. The County has
chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go basis.

The current ARC rate is 5.08% of the annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County
contributed $111,114 or 1.84% of annual covered payroll. The County obtains healthcare coverage
through private insurers. The County's required contributions, under a County resolution, for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers represented 0.42% and
0.25% of covered payroll, respectively. There were no contributions made by employees. The
County’s obligation to contribute to the HCB Plan is established and may be amended by the Board
of Commissioners.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the
General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set
aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEE Obligation. The County's annual OPEB cost (expense) is
caiculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), and an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial Habilities {or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years. The following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation
for the healthcare benefits:

The following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the current year,
the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation for the
postemployment healthcare benefits:

Annual Required Contribution $308,587
Interest on OPEB Obligation 306,101
Adjustment fo Annual Required Contribution (28,758)
Annual OPEB Cost (expense) $307.932
Contributions Made (111,114)
Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation $196,818
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 752,542

gy

Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year
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The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for 2012 were as follows:

Annual Pension Percentage of Nef Pension
Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APC) APC Contribution Obligation
6/30/10 273,391 11.13% 483,648
6/30/11 328,830 18.23% 752,542
6/30/12 307,932 36.08% 949,360

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the plan was 100 percent not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $2,222,489. The covered payroll (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $6,037,746, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll
was 36.81%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortatity, and healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding
the funded status of the plan and the annual reguired confributions of the employer are subject to
contirual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the fulure. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes fo the financial statements, (after the initial year of implementation) presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time retative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Acluarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and
include types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and the plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assels, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00% investment rate of returmn (net of administrative
expenses), which is the expected long-term investment returns on the employer's own investments
calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost
trend increase of 10.5 to 5.0 percent annually. The investment rate included a 3.00% percent inflation
assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a 5 year period. The UAAL is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining
amortization pericd at December 31, 2010, was 30 years.

Other Employment Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for
members of the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-
employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries
of those empiloyees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or
who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of
contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump
sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months salary in a
row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit will be a minimum of $25,000
and will not exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the postemployment benefit
amount and the other benefit amount. The County considers these contributions to be immaterial.
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Closure and Postclosure Care Costs - Landfill

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its fandfill when it stops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after
closure. Although closure and posiciosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill
stops accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfili capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $996,343
reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at June 30, 2012 represents the net cumulative amount
reported to date, based on the use of 100% of the total estimated capacity of the landfill.

The County closed the landfill on December 31, 1997 to all forms of trash except construction and debris and
has begun to incur actuai closure costs. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations.

The County has met the requirements of a local government financial test that is one option under State and
federal laws and regulations that helps determine if a unit is financially able to meet closure and post closure
care requirements.

Deferred/Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred or unearned revenues on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the
government-wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearned
Revenue Revenue
Taxes Receivable (Net) - General $536,515
Taxes Receivable (Net) - Fire Districts 52,172
Prepaid Regular Property Taxes Not Yet Eamed $30,356
Prepaid Vehicle Property Taxes Not Yet Earmed 46,027
Agricultural Center Grant 26,970

Total Governmental Acfivities

Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of; damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County maintains
commercial insurance with a private insurance agency. Through this company, the County oblains property
coverage equal to replacement cost values of owned property subject to a limit of $14.6 million for any one
occurrence, general, auto, professional, and employment practices liabilily coverage of $2 million per
occufrence, auto physical damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash value, crime coverage of
$250,000 per occurrence, workers' compensation coverage up o the statutory limits.

The County maintains a self-insurance plan for the medical benefits provided to their employees. Effective
June 1, 2009, the County established a partially self-funded group heaith care plan for eligible employees
and covered dependents. This activity is accounted for as an internal service fund. Stop loss insurance has
been purchased fo supplement the plan, which will reimburse the County for individual claims exceeding
$50,000 annually, or aggregate claims exceeding approximately $5,000,000 lifetime. The County became
partialty self-funded for the purpose of providing affordable heaith insurance fo its employees while better
managing the costs of health claims.
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The County carries flood insurance through a private insurance agency. The County's insurance policy
provides limited flood coverage in areas cutside the 100-year flood zone and is subject fo a per occurrence
deductible of $25,000. Property located within the 100-year flood zone, as designated by FEMA, is excluded
from coverage. The County has two properties located in areas designated as "B” areas (land not in the 100-
year flood plan but in the 500-year plan). The County has elected not to pursue further insurance coverage
for these two areas.

The County carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and setfled claims have not exceeded coverage in
any of the past three fiscal years.

In accordance with G.8. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given {ime
of the County's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Officer and
tax collector are each individually bonded for $50,000 each. The Sheriff and Register of Deeds are each
individually bonded for $10,000. The remaining employees that have access to funds are under a blanket
bond for $250,000.

Greene County ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related fo torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Board has property, general liahility,
auto liability, workers' compensation, and employee health coverage. The Board also has liquor legal liability
coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and
setlled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

6. Contingent Liabilities

At June 30, 2012, the County was not a defendant to any lawsuits. However, according to the County’s legal
counsel, threatened iitigation exists. In the opinion of the County's management and the County atiorney,
the ultimate effect of these legal matiers will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
position. If litigation occurs, these claims will be turned over to the County’s insurance carrier.

7. Long-Term Obligations

a. Note Payable

Note payable to an individual for the purchase of the Standard Laconic Building, The obligation requires
annual payments of $20,000 including interest at 5%.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $11,967 $8,033 $20,000
2014 12,680 7,420 20,000
2015 13,223 6,777 20,000
2016 13,900 6,100 20,000
2017 14,611 5,389 20,000

2018-2022 90,721 14,937 105,658
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b. Global Transpark Development Zone Loans Payable

The County has borrowed funds from the Global Transpark Development Zone Loan funds generated by
the temporary five-dollar ($5.00) motor vehicle registration tax. These tax proceeds were in furn loaned to
County businesses for Economic Development.

The first loan was drawn down on January 31, 2002 in the amount of $475,000. The County's obligation
under this agreement is mited to the amount of its annual appropriation for the payment of principat and
interest. The obligation calls for quarterly payments of $14,125, beginning on March 1, 2002 and ending on
December 1, 2011, The obligation carries inferest at 3.5% and the June 30, 2012 balance was paid in full,

The second loan was drawn down on May 14, 2002 in the amount of $175,000. The County's obligation
under this agreement is limited to the amount of its annual appropriation for the payment of principal and
interest. The obligation calls for quarterly payments of $5,204, beginning on June 1, 2002 and ending on
March 1, 2012. The obligation carries interest at 3.5% and the June 30, 2012 balance was paid in full.

The third loan was drawn down on September 29, 2004 in the amount of $250,000. The County’s
obligation under this agreement is limited to the amount of its annual appropriation for the payment of
principal and interest. The obligation calis for quarterly payments of $5,373, beginning on December 1,
2004 and ending on September 1, 2019. The obligation carries interest at 3.5% and the June 30, 2012
balance was $136,225.

The fourth loan was drawn down on November 9, 2008 in the amount of $140,000. The County's obligation
under this agreement is limited o the amount of its annual appropriation for the payment of principal and
interest. The obligation calls for quarterly payments of $5,708, beginning on March 1, 2009 and ending on
December 1, 2014. The obligation carries interest at 3.75% and the June 30, 2012 balance was $54,616.

The fifth loan was drawn down on May 4, 2009 in the amount of $100,000. The County's obligation under
this agreement is limited fo the amount of its annual appropriation for the payment of principal and interest.
The obligation calls for one interest-only payment and quarierly paymenis of $5,472, beginning on
September 1, 2009 and ending on March 1, 2014. The obligation carries interest at 3.50% and the June 30,
2012 balance was $42,102.

The sixth loan was drawn down on March 28, 2012 in the amount of $50,000. The County’s cbligation
under this agreement is limited fo the amount of its annual appropriation for the payment of principal and
interes{. The obligation calls for quarterly payments of $2,736, beginning on June 1, 2012 and ending on
March 1, 2017. The obligation carries interest at 3.50% and the June 30, 2012 balance was $47,537.

The annual debi service requirements to maturity for these loans are as follows:

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $68,113 $9,046 $77,159
2014 70,582 6,529 77,111
2016 39,000 4,383 44,262
2016 29,253 3,185 32,438
2017 27,358 2,149 29,507

2018-2020 45,264 1,944 47,208
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Installment Purchase Confracts

Industriat Park:

On June 14, 2007, the County entered into an instaliment purchase contract with Branch Banking & Trust
Company for the purpose of acquiring and/or constructing water & sewer utilities and a lift station for the
industrial Park site. Under the terms of this agreement the bank advanced funds to the County as
construction progressed for the purpose of paving construction costs. This contract is secured by a
promissory note and deed of trust on the property and any improvements thereon. The County's obligation
under this installment purchase contract is limited to the amount of its annual budgetary appropriation for
the payment of principal and interest. The purchase price advanced by the bank totaled $437,045.

Repayment, including principal and interest at 4.15%, is scheduled for semi-annual appropriations of
$19,716 beginning on December 14, 2007, with the remaining payments of $19,7186, including principal
and interest, due in semi-annual instaliments through June 14, 2021. The unpaid installment purchase
contract balance at June 30, 2012 was $241,224.

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $29,726 $9,706 $39,432
2014 30,972 8,480 39,432
2018 32,272 7,160 38,432
2016 33,624 5,808 39,432
2017 35,034 4,398 39,432
2018-2020 79,606 4,432 84,028

Ambulance:

On February 23, 2009, the County entered into an instaliment purchase contract with Southern Bank &
Trust Company for the purpose of acquiring a 2008 Chevrolet Ambulance. This contract is secured by the
related vehicle. The County’s obligation under this installment purchase contract is limited to the amount
of its annual budgetary appropriation for the payment of principal and interest. The total purchase price
advanced by the bank totaled $86,400. Repayment is scheduled for six semi-annual payments including
interest at 2.82% beginning August 23, 2009, through February 23, 2012. The confract was paid in full
on March 15, 2012,

Jail Construction:

On December 8, 2010, the County refinanced $10,500,000 interim financing for the Jail Construction with
three loans from USDA. The terms of each agreement calls for one annual payment of interest only on
December 8, 2011. Beginning December 9, 2012 the County will make one annual payment of principal
and interest of $373,554, $119,083, and $24,070 respectively. These agreements carry an interest rate
of 3.75%. The balances at June 30, 2012 were $7,285,937, $2,419,875, and $489,125, respectively.
During the refinancing process, $771,686 went from Greene County back to the USDA. These funds
were subsequently available for drawdown on the capital project related to courthouse renovations.

Loan 1:

During_} the Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2013 $91,592 $281,962 $373,554
2014 095,026 278,528 373,554
2015 08,500 274,964 373,554
2016 102,287 261,267 363,554
2017 106,123 267,431 373,554

2018-2022 593,377 1,274,393 1,867,770
2023-2027 713,298 1,154,472 1,867,770
2028-2032 857,455 1,010,315 1,867,770
2033-2037 1,030,746 837,024 1,867,770
2038-2042 1,239,061 1,867,770

2043-2047
2048-2051

1,489,474 1,867,770
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Loan 2:
During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $28,338 $90,745 $119,083
2014 29,400 89,683 119,083
2015 30,503 88,580 119,083
20186 31,647 87,436 119,083
2047 32,833 86,250 119,083
2018-2022 183,586 411,829 595,415
2023-2027 220,689 374,726 595,415
2028-2032 265,290 330,125 595,415
2033-2037 318,904 276,511 595,415
2038-2042 383,356 212,059 595,415
2043-2047 460,832 134,583 595,415
2048-2051 434,497 41,464 475,961
Loan 3
During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $5,728 $18,342 $24,070
2014 5,943 18,127 24,070
2015 6,165 17,905 24,070
2016 6,397 17.673 24,070
2017 6,637 17,433 24,070
2018-2022 37,107 83,243 120,350
2023-2027 44,606 75,744 120,350
2028-2032 53,623 66,727 120,350
2033-2037 64,459 55,801 120,350
2038-2042 77,487 42,863 120,350
2043-2047 93,148 27,202

2048-2051

8,380

School Construction:

As authorized by State law [G.8. 160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County is financing the construction of
an intermediate school for use by the Greene Counly Board of Education. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011 the County entered info two installment purchase confracts which will eventually total
$13,600,000. The installment purchases were issued pursuant to a deed of trust that requires that legal
titte remain with the County as long as the debt is outstanding. The Counily has entered into a lease with
the Greene County Board of Education that transfers the rights and responsibilities for maintenance and
insurance of the property {o the Board of Education. The lease calls for nominal annual lease payments
and also contains a bargain purchase option. The lease term is the same as that of the instaliment
purchase obligation. Due to the economic substance of the transaction, the capital assets associated
with the installment purchase obligation will be recorded by the Board of Education after consfruction is
complete. Construction in progress will be carried on the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets
until construction is complete.

The terms of the agreement for loan 1 in the amount of $6,600,000, calls for one interest only payment
on February 17, 2012. Beginning February 17, 2013, the County will make forty annual payments of
principal and interest of $337,062, ending February 17, 2051. As of June 30, 2012 the County had drawn
only $2,754,275 of principal funds.
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Loan 1:
During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $69,395 $267,667 $337,062
2014 75,838 261,224 337,062
2015 78,871 258,191 337,062
2016 82,026 255,036 337,062
2017 85,307 251,755 337,062
2018-2022 480,534 1,204,776 1,685,310
2023-2027 584,642 1,100,668 1,685,310
2028-2032 711,307 974,003 1,885,310

2033-2036 586,355 669,751 1,256,108

The {erms of the agreement for loan 2 in the amount of $7,000,000, calls for one interest only payment
on February 17, 2012. Beginning February 17, 2013, the County will make forty annual payments of
principal and interest of $57,480, ending February 17, 2051. As of June 30, 2012 the County had drawn
$7,000,000 of principal funds.

Loan 2:
During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $73,601 $283,889 $357,400
2014 80,434 277,056 357,490
2015 83,651 273,839 357,490
20186 86,007 270,493 357,490
2017 00,477 267,013 357,490
2018-2022 509,657 1,277,793 1,787,450
2023-2027 620,075 1,167,375 1,787,450
2028-2032 754,417 1,033,033 1,787,450
2033-2037 917.863 869,587 1,787,450
2038-2042 1,116,721 670,729 1,787,450
2043-2047 1,368,661 428,789 1,787,480

2048-2052 1,307,446 134,429 1,441,875
z z = B

<l

(Reported In Enterprise Funds)
Utility Fund

On April 30, 2004 the County entered into an installment purchase contract with Branch Banking and
Trust Company for the purpose installing sanitary sewer service to the new Maury Correctional
Institution. The County’s obligation of under this installment purchase contract is limited to the amount of
its annual budgetary appropriation for the repayment of principal and interest. The total advanced by the
bank was $2,654,220. Repayment is scheduled for thirty semi-annual payments of $116,000 including
interest at 3.69%, beginning October 30, 2004 through April 30, 2019,

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $181,267 $50,733 $232,000
2014 188,018 43,082 232,000
2015 195,020 36,880 232,000
2016 202,282 28,718 232,600
2017 200,815 22,185 232,000
20182019
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d.

On May 29, 2008 the County entered into an installment purchase contract with First Citizens Bank and
Trust Company for the purpose of installing water and sewer services to the new Cutter Creek Subdivision.
The County’s obligation under this installment purchase confract is limited to the amount of its annual
budgetary appropriation for the repayment of principal and inferest. The total advanced by the bank was
$1,800,000. During the year ended June 30, 2009, a special grant allowed for principal repayment of
$340,000 leaving a net loan of $1,460,000. On April 29, 2010 the County amended its contract with First
Citizens Bank and Trust Company, resulting in new payment terms. Beginning with the payment on May
29, 2010, the County will make 6 semi-annual payments of $180,000 pius interest through November 29,
2012. There will be a final payment of $115,650 ptus interest due May 29, 2013. The loan carries an
interest rate of 3.73%.

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
$7.671

2013

Clean Water Bond Loan Payable

On January 6, 2003, Greene County entered into a loan agreement with the State of North Carolina to
obtain financing under the Clean Water Bond Loan Program. The proceeds were used to construct
supply and storage facilities to alleviate the current water shortage and for the extension of the County's
distribution system. Principal Is due annually on May 1. Interest is accrued at the rate of 5.75% and is
payable semi-annually on May * and November 1. The total loan amount advanced to Greene County
was $3,272,415. At June 30, 2012, the balance was $1,894,556.

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2013 172,232 $100,983 $273,1985
2014 172,232 92,549 264,781
2015 172,232 84,136 256,368
2016 172,232 75,722 247,954
2017 172,232 67,308 239,540

2018-2022 861,180 210,339 1,071,499
2023 172,236 16,827

Revenue Bonds

On September 23, 2008, the County secured interim financing through the issuance of Bond Anticipation
Note Proceeds for the construction of Water Systemn Improvements. On August 30, 2010, $6,202,000 of
these bonds were issued and the interim financing was satisfied. On August 30, 2011, the remaining
$6,537,000 was issued and the interim financing was satisfied. The revenue bonds are recorded in the
utility fund and are collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County. Principal and
interest payments are appropriated when due.

The County's revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2012 are comprised of the following individual issues
by series:

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Serviced by the County's Utility Fund:

$4,202,000 Water Revenue Bonds Series 2010A issued
August 30, 20119; due in annual installments through

June 1, 2050; interest at 4.00%.

$2,000,000 Water Revenue Bonds Series 20108 issued
August 30, 2010; due in annual installments through

June 1, 2050; interest at 4.00%.

$3,800,000 Water Revenue Bonds Series 2011A issued
August 30, 2011; due in annual instaliments through

June 1, 2050; interest at 4.125%.

$2,737,000 Water Revenue Bonds Series 20118 issued
August 30, 2011; due in annual instaliments through

June 1, 2050; interest at 3.375%.

Total

$4,202,000

2,000,000

3,800,000

2,737,000

Annual Debt Service requirements to maturity for the County’s revenue bonds are as follows:

2010 Series:
During the Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2013 $76,000 $233,080 $300,080
2014 79,600 230,242 309,242
2015 82,6000 227,293 309,293
2016 85,000 224,230 309,230
2017 88,000 221,085 309,055
2018-2022 492,000 1,053,432 1,545,432
2023-2027 592,600 954 138 1,546,138
2028-2032 713,000 834,417 1,547,417
2033-2037 856,000 690,228 1,546,228
2038-2042 1,029,000 516,792 1,545,792
2043-2047 1,242,000 307,943 1,549,943
2048-2051 034,257

2011 Series:
During the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $249,124 $249,124
2014 $80,000 249,124 328,124
2015 83,000 246,101 329,101
2016 86,000 242,963 328,963
2017 89,000 239,707 328,707
2018-2022 499,000 1,145,205 1,644,205
20232027 596,000 1,043,419 1,642,419
2028-2032 722,000 920,603 1,642,603
2033-2037 872,000 772,185 1,644,185
2038-2042 1,051,000 592,950 1,643,950
2043-2047 1,264,000 376,478 1,640,478
2048-2051

1,192,000
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The County has been in compliance with the covenants as to rates, fees, rentals and charges in Section 5 of
the Bond Order, authorizing the issuance of the Water Revenue Bonds, Series 20104, 20108, 2011A and
2011B. Section 5.01 of the Bond Order requires the debt service coverage ratio to be no less than 110%.
The debt service coverage ratio calculation for the year ended June 30, 2012, is as follows:

Operating Revenues $2,150,114
Operating Expenses 2,412,944
QOperating Income {262,830)
Nongperating Revenues (Expenses) 458,004
Capital Contributions & Transfers In 1,387,344
Income Available for Debt Senice 1,682,608
Debt Senvice, Principal and Interest

Paid {(Revenue Bonds Only) 558,204
Debt Senice Cowerage Ratio 284%

. DWSRF Revolving Loan

On May 20, 2009, the County entered into a loan agreement with the State of North Carolina to obtain
financing under the Drinking Water State Revolving Funds Program (DWSRF). The funds will be used to
complete a construction project for Water System Improvements. Of the total $3,000,000 loan,
$2,430,908 has been received by the County as of June 30, 2012. The agreement allows for half of the
loan to be forgiven. Once the entire $3,000,000 has been received, half of the loan will be paid back
over 20 years with no interest. At June 30, 2012, the total payable was $1,425,000. One principal
payment of $75,000 was paid during the year, leaving a balance of $1,350,000 at June 30, 2012.

During the Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2013 $75,000 $75,000
2014 75,000 75,000
2015 75,000 75,000
2016 75,000 75,000
2017 75,000 75,000
2018-2022 375,000 375,000
20232027 375,000 375,000

20282030 225,000 225,000

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

g. Long-term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the County’s long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Increases Decreases Balance Portion
Governmental Activities:
Notes Payable $168,387 $11,385 $157,002 $11,967
Global Transpark Development Zone Loans 327,223 $50,000 96,744 280,479 68,113
Instaliment Purchase Contracts 10,771,408 9,477,169 58,140 20,190,437 298,380
Net Pension Obligation 136,328 20,209 167,237
OPEB Obligation 690,157 284,160 114,114 863,203
Compensated Absences 404,878 335,493 328,725 411,646

Total Governmentat Activities

Business-type Activities:

Installment Purchase Contract $2,250,174 $534,758 $1,715.416 $476,917
Clean Water Bond Loan 2,066,788 172,232 1,894,558 172,232
Bond Anticipation Notes 6,537,000 6,537,000
Revenue Bends 6,202,000 $6,537,000 12,739,000 76,000
DWSRF Rewolving Loan 1,140,455 284,545 75,000 1,350,000 75,000
Accrued Landfill Closure and

Posfclosure Cosls 996,343 996,343
OPEB Obligation 62,385 23772 86,157
Compensated Absences 48,228 38,276 77,667

Total Business-type Acfivities

Debt Related to Capital Activities — Of the total Governmental Activities debt lisfed only $20,347,438
relates to assets the County holds title. Restricted cash related to this debt amounts to $172,800.

Compensated absences for governmental activities typically have been liuidated in the general fund
and are accounted for on a LIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is earned.

8. Non-Cancelable Operating L.ease

The County has entered into an agreement {o lease certain equipment with COECQO Office Systems, Inc.
The lease agreement qualifies as an operating lease for accounting purposes., The agreement was
executed on May 28, 2008 io lease coplers and document feeders for various county departments and
requires 60 monthly payments of $1,745. The cost of black and color copies, parts, labor, supplies
{excluding paper and staples), and networking assistance are included in the monthly cost.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of
June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30,
2013 $19,195

Total Minimum Future Payments Required
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

C. INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund
Utility Fund $2655,880
Landfill Fund
General Fund {15,220)

Operating and equity transfers to and from funds for the year ended June 30, 2012 are as follows:

TRANSFERS
FROM TO
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund - Cutier Creek $278,202
Enterprise Fund
Cutter Creek $278,202

Total Operating Transfers - Other Funds

D. PRICR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

In the April 2011 Tornado Special Revenue Fund, an accounts receivable in the amount of $243,248 was booked
as of June 30, 2011. This amount represented anticipated revenue from FEMA fo be received during the June
30, 2012 fiscal year. The actual amount received was $41,555. No other FEMA funds are expected to be
received. As a result, the difference of ($201,693) represents an overstatement of net assets from the prior year.

The following shows the effect of this prior period adjustment both on the govemmental activities and the April
2011 Tornado Special Revenue Fund:

April 2011
Governmental Tornado Special
Activities Revenue Fund

Unrestricted Unrestricted

Net Assets Net Assets

Net Assets at beginning of year,

as originally stated $9,730,437 $278,219
Prior Perlod Adjustment {201,693) (201,693)

Net Assets at beginning of year,
as restated

R U e

=

W SN
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CARCLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

E. FUND BALANCE

Greene County has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with muliiple revenue sources.
The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, state funds, tocal
non-city funds, city funds. For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from
restricted fund balance first, followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly
unassigned fund balance. The finance officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best
interest of the County.

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General Fund
batance that is available for appropriation:

Total Fund Balance - General Fund $3,473,053
less:

Stabilization by State Statute 2,365,100
Register of Deeds 39,410
Health Department 452,462
Sheriff Department 35,447
Capital Outiay 142,066

Remaining Fund Balance
IV. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The County's govemning board is also respensible for appeinting the members of the board of the Greene County
Housing Authority, but the County’s accouniability for this organization does not extend beyond making these
appointments. The Authority exisis fo provide housing assistance for low-income County residents from funding
provided by federal and State resources. The County did not appropriate any funds to the Authority during the year
ended June 30, 2012, and the Authority is not considered in determining the County's legal debt limit.

V. JOINT YENTURES

The County participates in a joint venture with Lenoir and Jones counties fo operate the Neuse Regional Library. The
County appoints three board members of the twelve-member board. The County has an ongoing financial
responsibility for the joint venture because the Library’s continued existence depends on the participating governments’
continued funding. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Library, so no equity interest
has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012. During the year ended June 30, 2012, the County
appropriated $131,000 to the Library. Complete financial statements for the Library can be obtained by contacting the
Library's administrative offices at 510 North Queen Street, Kinston, North Carolina 28501.

The County, in conjunction with Wilson, Edgecombe, and Nash Counties, participates in a joint venture to operate The
Beacon Center for Mental Health, Mental Retardation, and Substance Abuse Services. The County appoints five board
members of the eighteen-member board. The Counfy has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture
because the Center's continued existence depends on the participating governments’ funding in conjunction with the
State and federal governments. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Center, so no
equity interest has been refiected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012. The County appropriated $66,618 to the
Center during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 which included $0 received from the ABC Board designated for
alcohol education. Al Mental Health appropriations were suspended for the 2011-2012 fiscal year. This was done
state-wide for all counties. The only appropriations expended during the year were for the alcohol education to the
ABC Board. Complete financial statements for the Center ¢an be obfained by contacting the Center's administrative
offices at 500 Nash Medical Arts Mall, Rocky Mount, North Carolina 27804.
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The County, in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and three other Locat Governments, participaies in a joirt
venture to operate Lenocir Community College. The County appoints two members of the sixteen member board of
frustees of the community college. The College is included as a component unit of the State of North Carolina. The
County has the basic responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of the community college and also provides
some financial support for the Community College’'s operations. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for
the community college because of the statutory responsibilities to provide funding for the community college’s facitities.
The County contributed $245,000 to the Community College during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The
participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity interest has been
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements for the community college may be
obtained from the communify college's administrative offices at PO Box 188, Highway 70 and 58, Kinston, North
Carolina 28502.

JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

East Carolina Council Of Governments

The County, in conjunciion with eight other counties and fifty municipalities, established the East Carolina Council of
Governments (“Council"). The participating governments established the Council fo coordinate various funding
received from federal and State agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to the Council’s
governing board. The County paid membership fees of $6,833 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

Global TransPark Development Commission

The Global TransPark Development Commission is a corporate body created on November 28, 1993. lts purpose is to
allow participating counties, including Greene County, which have the potential to derive direct economic benefits from
the North Carclina Global TransPark, to create a special economic development district, known as the Global
TransPark Development Zone. The Commissions’ primary responsibility is to promote and encourage economic
development within the territorial jurisdiction of the Zone by fostering development projects to provide land, buildings,
facllities, programs, information and data systems, and infrastructure requirements for business and industry in the
Global TransPark Development Zone.

The Commission is governed by nineteen voting members, consisting of one member from Greene County and each
of the twelve other participating counties, and two members each appointed by the Senate, the Governor, and the
House of Representatives. The Board of County Commissioners of the respective countles appoints the voting
members from each of the counties.

The Commission is responsible for a nonexpendable trust fund consisting of an initial State appropriation of $7.5 million
and 85% of the quarterly distributions of the $5 motor vehicle license fees collected by the North Carolina Department
of Transportation. The motor vehicle tax was adopted by the legislature and the participating counfies and was
collected for a period of five years. The principal balance of the trust funds are nonexpendable and will revolve as
loans are made and repaid to the Commission. At June 30, 2012, the portion of the frust available to be loaned
exclusively to Greene County was $583,284, calculated as follows:

Total Allocations for Loans $863,765
Loans Drawn Down (1,535,000)

Principal Payments 1,254,51
Funds Available =

BENEFIT PAYMENTS ISSUED BY THE STATE

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and State moneys.
County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations that cause benefit payments
to be issued by the State. These amounts disclose this additional aid to County recipients that do not appear in the
general purpose financial statements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County.
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Federal State
Medicaid $18,765,447 $10,996,132
Food Stamp Program 7,103,081
Women, Infants and Children 400,021
Ternporary Assistance For Needy Families 208,577

Other Programs 159,404 27,267
Total

SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

FEDERAL AND STATE ASSISTED PROGRAMS

The County has received proceeds from several federal and State granis. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain costs may be guestioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements.
Such audits could resuit in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any
required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the
refund of grant moneys.

MAJOR ENTERPRISE CUSTOMER

The County's Utility Fund has one indusirial customer who provides a substantial amount of the fund’s sales. Billings
to this customer comprised 45.32% of total billings.

CUTTER CREEK

On March 5, 2008, the County entered info an Infrasfructure Financing Agreement with Mill Run Development Group,
LLC. Mill Run Development Group, LLC is the entity that has been formed to own, develop and sell real property in
the 400 plus acre development in Greene County known as the Cutter Creek Plantation Subdivision. The terms of the
agreement state that the County will provide financing to construct the wastewater infrastructure required fo convey
wastewater from Cutter Creek to the City of Kinston's wastewater system. The County has undertaken this
consfruction in anticipation that the Couniy will collect sufficient additional ad valorem tax revenues from the
development of Cutter Creek fo amortize the project financing in full on or before December 31, 2013. Under the
agreement, Mill Run Development Group, LLC placed $1,425,000 with a third party Escrow Agent representing the
principal of the financed amount plus one year's interest associated with the debt. The County may draw up to the full
amount of the Escrow Fund in the event the tax revenues generated from Cutter Creek do not fulfill the obligation of
the debt instrument. As of report date, $1,157,053 of escrow funds had been released,

Since inception of Cutter Creek, there have been five phases of construction related to water and sewer
infrastructure. As of report date, ali phases are complete and the County anticipates taking over ownership of these
assets in the coming year. The total estimated value of the infrastructure assets is approximately $8,000,000.

SPECIAL ITEM — DONATED ASSET

The Neuse Regional Library (NRL) completed a capital project for the new Greene County Library Addition during the
year. The project activity has been reported as a capital project in the financial statements of NRL. The asset, which
was donated to the County, is io be kept on the County’s books and shall be depreciated over a fifty year life. The
vaiue of this asset is $1,026,447 with an in service date of June 30, 2012.

This item is reflected on the government-wide statements as a special item because It is unusual in nature but under
the control of management. As a result, a gain of $1,026,447 is recognized.

58



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

]

This section contains additional information required by generaily
accepted accounting principles.

Schedule of Funding Progress for the LLaw Enforcement Officers’
Special Separation Allowance.

Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law Enforcement
Officers’ Special Separation Allowance.

Notes to the Required Schedules for the Law Enforcement
Officers’ Special Separation Allowance.

Scheduie of Funding Progress for the Other Postemployment
Benefits,

Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Other
Postemployment Benefits.

Notes to the Required Schedules for the Other Postemployment
Benefits.




GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

June 30, 2012

STATEMENT 1

Actuarial Accrued Covered UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability (AAL}) Payroll for Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit Unfunded Funded Year Ending  of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio On Val Date Payroll
Date {a) {b) {b-a) (alb) (c) ((b -a) /c)
12/31/1997 $0 $63,324 $63,324 0.00% $441,707 14.34%
12/31/1998 30 $41,666 $41,666 0.00% $507,459 8.21%
12/31/1699 $0 $35,126 $35,126 0.00% $492,016 7.14%
12/31/2000 $0 $44,921 $44,921 0.00% $511,850 8.78%
12/31/2001 $0 $44,712 $44,712 0.60% $477,967 9.35%
12/31/2002 30 $50,488 $50,488 0.00% $559,480 8.02%
12/31/2003 $0 $56,684 $56,684 0.00% $503,731 9.55%
12/31/2004 $0 $48,867 $48,867 0.00% $577,806 8.46%
12/31/2005 $0 $50,632 $50,632 0.00% $703,682 7.20%
12/31/2006 $0 $a57.121 857,121 0.00% $719,796 7.94%
1213172007 $0 $66,629 $66,629 0.00% $697,283 9.56%
12/31/2008 $0 $77,583 $77,583 0.00% $721,823 10.75%
12/31/2009 $0 $128,600 $128,600 0.00% $722,011 17.81%
12/31/2010 30 $138,018 $138,018 0.00% $775,001 17.81%
1213172011 30 $145,568 $145,568 0.00% $812,285 17.92%
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT 2

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
June 30, 2012

Annual Required

Year Ending June 30 Contribution
1998 $9,706
1999 $9,485
2000 $7,858
2001 $7,017
2002 $8,552
2003 $8,619
2004 $9,918
2005 $11,069
2006 $9,248
2007 $10,432
2008 $10,913
2009 $11,822
2010 $13,262
2011 $20,657
2012 $22,226

Notes fo the Required Schedules:

Percentage
Contributed

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
(.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
6.00%

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial vaiuation at
the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Pericd

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return®
Projected Salary Increases*
*Includes Inflation At
Cost-of-Living Adjustments
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Projected Unit Credit

Level Percent of Pay Closed
19 Years

Market Value

5.00%

4.25% to 7.85%
3.00%

N/A



June 30, 2012

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

STATEMENT 3

Actuarial Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit AAL {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) {b) {b~a) {a/b) (c) {(b -a) /c)
12/31/2008 50 $1,787,821 $1,787,821 0.00%  $5,667,378 31.55%
12/31/2009 50 $2,167,055 $2,167,955 0.00%  $5,907,343 36.70%
12/31/2010 $0 $2,222,489 $2,222,489 0.00% $6,037,746 36.81%
12/31/2011 $0 $2,222,489 $2,222,489 0.00%  $6,037,746 36.81%
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CARCLINA

STATEMENT 4

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

June 30, 2012

Year Ending June 30

Annual Required
Contribution

2009
2010
2011
2012

Notes to the Required Schedules:

$272,070
273,391
328,830
306,587

Percentage
Contributed

11.54%
11.13%
18.23%
36.08%

The information presented in the required supplementary schedutes was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at
the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return®
Proiected Salary Increases®

*Includes Inflation At
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Projected Unit Credit

L evei Percent of Pay Closed
30 Years

Market Value OF Assets

4.00%
10.50% to 5.00%
3.00%
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Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules




GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT 5
Page 1 of 7

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorahle)
REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes $7,893,553 $7,683,177 ($210,376)
Penalties and interest 137,000

Total Ad Valorem Taxes

Local Option Sales Taxes:

248

Article 39 and 44 $635,000 $509,647 ($35,353)
Article 40 978,572 1,084,310 105,738
Article 42 408,440 398,855

Tofal Local Option Sales Taxes

Other Taxes and Licenses:;
Real Estate Transfer Tax
Privilege Licenses
Total Other Taxes and Licenses

Unrestricted Intergovernmental Revenue:
Beer & Wine Tax

Restricted Intergovernmental Revenue:
State and Federal Grants
GTP Loans & Loan Repayments
Controlled Substance Tax
Court Facility Fees
ABC - 5 cent Bottle Tax
Inmate Fees & Reimbursements
Board of Education SRO Reimbursements

Total Restricted Intergovernmental Revenue

Permits and Fees:

$5,243,671 $4,286,214 ($957,457)
253,802 60,853 (193,039)
5,000 384 (4,616)
42,000 20,469 (12,531)
1,800 2,731 931
501,875 223,132 (278,743)

62,601 63,200 589

Building Inspection Fees $85,000 $107,195 $22.195
Concealed Weapon Fees & Gun Permits 12,000 7,350 {4,650)
Register of Deeds 65,000 62,151 (2,849)
Cable TV Fees 11,500 9,704 {1,796)

Buiiding/Other Permits and Fees
Total Permits & Fees
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Sales and Services:
Jail and Officer Fees $83,400 $98,108 $14,708
Ambulance and EMS Fees 1,285,000 725,799 (559,201)
Recreation Fees 49,093 34,605 (15,388)
Senior Center Meals 4,380 2,742 (1,838)
Municipal Tax Collection Fee 13,200 3,283 (8,817}
Copier and Vending Machines 5,000 5,250 250
Rents

Total Sales & Services
Total investment Earnings

QOther Revenues:

16,857 7,043 (9,614)

Gasoline Tax Refund $15,000 $225 ($14,775)
United Way Receipts - Senior Center 8,200 9,920 1,720
Sweet Potato Festival 65,313 46,219 (19,094}
Elaney Woods Project 478,340 20,000 {458,340)
Insurance Proceeds 18,718 18,718

Miscellaneous
Total Other Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
General Government:
Governing Body:
Salaries & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses
insurance Other Than Property

Adminstration:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

Elections:
Salaries & Employee Benefits
Operating Expenses

$25,660 $25,660
56,308 55,110 $1,198

$68,046 $66,196 $1,850
185,069 183,694 1,375

Finance:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $296,394 $293,356 $3,038
Operating Expenses 65,300 67,602 (2,302)

9
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Taxes:
Salaries & Emplovee Benefiis $327,691 $325,144 $2,647
Operating Expenses 154,051 147,280 6,771
Revaluation

Register of Deeds:
Salaries & Employee Benefils $141,319 $132,958 $1,361
Operating Expenses 84,598 65,719 . 18,879

Public Buildings:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $138,379 $138,376 $3
Operating Expenses 342,239 1,717

Court Facilities:
Operating Expenses

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Public Safety:
Sheriff Department:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $1,500,185 $1,478,766 $21,419
Operating Expenses 423170 384,381 38,789
Capital Qutlay 55,827 55,827
County Jall:
Salaries & Employee Benefiis $669,196 $645,520 $23,667

Operating Expenses

3

Inspections:
Salardes & Employee Benefits $158,553 $157,580 $973
Operating Expenses 18,525 16,850 1,875

Emergency Management:

Salaries & Employee Benefits $71,864 $71,400 $455
Operating Expenses 60,144 48,616 11,628
Aid to Fire Districts 58,000 58,000
Greene County Firemen's Association 5,000 5,000
Capital Outlay/Homeland Security Grant 11,252 11,252

T

Emergency Medical Services:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $678,038 $664,714 $13,324
Operating Expenses 387,372 274,535 112,837
Aid to Rescue Districts
Capital Qutlay
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
2012 Favorable
Actual {Unfavorable)

Medical Examiner:
Operafing Expenses

1,586

B e s

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

Environmental Protection:
Forest Fire Prevention:
County Maiching to State
TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Economic & Physical Development:
Agriculturat Extension:

Salaries & Employee Benefits $120,408 $120,569 ($163)
Operating Expenses 25,885 18,237 7,648

Capital Outlay/E.W. Project 478,340 454,689 23,651

Soil Conservation Services:
Salaries & Employee Benefils $107,400 $1086,941
Operating Expenses 17,041 12,235

Economic Development:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $81,182 $81,750 {$568)
OCperating Expenses 18,407 17,010 1,397

TOTAL ECONOMIC & PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT

Human Services:
Public Health:
Administration:

Salaries & Employee Benefits $1,449,572 $1,398,002 $51,480
Operating Expenses 479,634 256,341 223,293
Clinic and Consulting Fees

Mental Health:
The Beacon Center
ABC Funds - Addictions Program

Social Services:
Administration:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $1,940,735 $1,927,420 $13,315
COperating Expenses

Adoption Assistance
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Favorabie
{Unfavorabile)

TANF Program:
Domestic Viclence
Emergency Assistance
Foster Care

$2,425

Blind Assistance

Energy:
Carolina Power and Light Crisis Fund

Day Care:
County Participation $671,456 $666,361 $5,085
Smart Start

Adoption Incentive
Crisis LIEAP

Program Expenses

Child Support Enforcement
Food Stamps

General Assistance
Independent Living

Work First Job Program

Medical Assistance

Neuse River-In Home Care

Special Assistance-Adults

Title XX Legal Expense

Foster Care

Total Social Services
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
2012 Faveorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Veterans Service Officer:
Salaries & Employee Benefits ($2)

Operating Expenses 4

Youth Services:
Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay 500 399 101

Senior Services:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $101,032 $101,897 (5865)
Operating Expenses 126,657 867

TOTAL HUMAN SERVICES

Culture and Recreation:
Regional Library:
County Matching Share

Recreation:
Salaries & Employee Benefits $118,261 $117,850 3411
Operating Expenses 123,164 115,487 7,677

Capital Outlay 7,200 7,200

Sweet Potato Festival

TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION

Education:
Pubtic Schools:
Current Expense - Local $2,247,600 %2,247,000

Capital Outlay - Local 453,893 452,659 $1,234

Community College:
Local Appropriation $240,000 $240,000
Operating Expenses

TOTAL EDUCATION
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Debt Service;
Principal Retirement $235,240 $125,273 $109,967
Interest 305,584 378,210 17,374
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers To Other Funds ($471,502) {$471,002} $500
Transfers From Other Funds 115,300 115,300

Sale of Fixed Assets 15,000 490 (14,510)
Fund Balance Appropriated 104,723 (104,723)
Captial Lease Obligations Issued 20,000 {20,000}

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenue and Other Financing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

($1,633,325)

FUND BALANCES
Beginning of Year, July T 5,106,378

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

STATEMENT 6

REVENUES:
Restricted Infergovernmental:
Imvestment Eamings
USDA Grant
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Education:
Admin/Legal
Architectural Reimbursement
Architectural/Engineering
Construction
Capital Qutlay
Interim Interest
Contingency
Construction Management
Data Senice Technology
LEED Submission Cost
Utitity Connections
Special Inspections
Grant Contingency
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Temporary Financing Issued for USDA
installment Purchase Obligations Issued
Total Other Financing Sources

Revenue and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date (Unfavorable)
$134 $134 $134

$30,000
32,011
792,500
11,119,342
450,000
230,000
198,847
222,300
375,000
5,000
25,000
120,000

$28,010

26,080
1,620,771

58,500

Amounts reported for Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
are different from the Budget/Actual Statements due to consolidation of

Debt Senice Fund:
Transfers In (Out)

Fund Balance, Beginning (Debt Senice Fund)

Fund Balance, Ending (Consolidated Intermediate School Fund)
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($7,949)
32,011
752,310
8,627,649
311,736
100,874

140,400
3,542

91,066

($1,040,961) &

(1,007,077)

$20,061
32,011
778,300
10,248,420
311,736
100,674

198,800
3,642

108,512

{$400,000)

$9,939

14,110
870,922
138,264
129,126
198,847
23,400
375,000
1,458
25,000
11,488
400,000




COMBINING STATEMENTS FOR NON-MAJOR FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds
e Fire District Funds — These funds account for the County’s coliection of tax
revenue and related expenditures for each of the eleven fire districts.

e Property Revaluation Fund — The County uses this fund to set aside money
each year to pay for the revaluation for tax purposes of real property every
eight years.

e Emergency Telephone System Fund — This fund accounts for the 911 revenues
collected by the telephone industry to fund the 911 emergency system.

e April 2011 Tornado Fund — This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses
associated with the tornado that hit the County on April 16, 2011.

e 2009 Community Development Block Grant Project Fund - This fund accounts
for the revenues and expenses associated with various community
revitalization projects.

e Hurricane Irene Fund — This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses
associated with Hurricane Irene which made landfall in eastern North Carolina
on August 27, 2011.

Capital Projects Funds
» School Capital Finance Fund — The County uses this fund to account for the
construction/improvement of the Schools.

s American Prawn Cooperative Project Fund - The County uses this fund to account
for the construction of a new building for economic innovation {o harvest and process
prawns.

« Court House Renovations Project Fund — The County uses this fund to account
for the renovations for the Greene County Courthouse.




GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash
Accounis Recelvable
Due From Other Governments
Due From Cther Funds
Taxes Receivable, Net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts Payabie
Deferred Revenue
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances;
Restricied:
Stabilization by State Statute
USDA Loan Paymenis
Committed
Assigned
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Special Revenue Funds

Emergency April 2009
Fire Property Telephone 2011 CDBG Hurricane
District Revaluation System Tornado Project lrene
Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$5,504 $431,010 $45,450 $14,318
$106,759
. 9,120
9,781 4,213 1,280

$13,101 $5 $151 $11,392
62,172
29,608

$18,90 $4,213 $1,280

$108,754

430,859 4,360
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Total Capital Project Funds Total
Non-major School American Court House Non-major Total
Special Capital Prawn Renovations Capital Non-major
Revenue Finance Cooperative Project Projects Governmental
Funds Fund Project Fund Fund Funds Funds
$496,372 $26,594 $29,615 $56,209 $552,581
106,759 $881 77,508 78,389 185,148
9,120 10,000 10,000 18,120
15,274 1,849 1,849 17,123

8,083
61

$24,648
52,172
29,608

$2,168 $105,311

337,042

29,727

$107,479 $132,128
52,172
366,769

$24,394

108,754

$1,849
77,508

(412,738)

$11,849 $36,243
77,508 77,508
106,754
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Emergency April 2009
Fire Property Telephone 2011 CDBG Hurricane
District Revaluation System Tornado Project frene
Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES:

Ad Valorem Taxes $608,878
Restricted Intergovemmental $109,677 $161,088 $35,694
Investment Eamings $88 241

Miscellaneous $121,235 22,407
Total Revenues 7 T

EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety $608,878 $111,049
Economic Development $63,807 $161,088 $42 503
Capital Outlay 175,191 125,381
Debt Sendce - Principal 29,610

Debt Sendce - Inferest 614
Total Expenditures : :

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $0 $88 ($207,446) {$67,953) $0 $15,598

OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES):
Operating Transfer In (Out) {$115,300)
Instaliment Purchase Obligations Issued
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of Year, July 1 $221,966 $657,206 $278,219
Prior Period Adjustment (See Note 11I-D} {$201,6893)
Beginning of Year, July 1 (Restated) $221,966 $657,206 76,526

£nd of Year, June 30
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STATEMENT 8

Total Capital Project Funds Total
Nonmajor School American Court House Nonmajor Toftat
Special Capital Prawn Renovations Capital Nonmajor

Revenue Finance Cooperative Project Projects Governmental

Funds Fund Project Fund Fund Funds Funds
$608,878 $608,878
306,459 ‘ $10,000 $10,000 316,459
329 $473 473 802
143,642 143,642

$720,827 $544,270 $544,270 $1,265,097
267,398 $6,430 6,430 273,828
300,572 300,572
29,610 $11,385 11,385 40,995
614 9,229
($259,713) ($20,000) $3,570 ($543,797) ($560,227) ($819,940)
($115,300) $20,000 ' $77,508 $97,508 ($17,792)

466,624 466,824

$1,157,391 $881 $1,129 ($333,716) ($331,706) $825,685
(201,693) (201,693)
955,608 $881 $1,120 ($333,716) ($331,708) 623,992
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STATEMENT ¢

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
FIRE DISTRICT FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Annual 2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes - Current Year $613,829 $582,896 ($30,933)

Ad Valorem Taxes - Prior Years
Tofal Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety:
Rainbow Fire District $63,000 $62,691 $309
Bull Mead Fire District 46,800 46,439 361
Maury Fire District 67,500 66,007 1,493
Arba Fire District 51,000 50,654 346
Shine Fire District 62,790 62,342 448
Little Creek Fire District 31,764 31,672 o2
Contentnea Fire District 80,500 80,128 302
Fort Run Fire District 48,925 48,341 584
Jason Fire District 47,550 47,475 75
Castoria Fire District 60,000 59,624 376

Speight's Bridge Fire District

53,435 565
Total Expenditures R

Revenues Over Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 10

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY REVALUATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Annual 2012 Favorable
Budget Aciual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Investment Earnings $88 $88
Total Revenues :
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Governrnent:
Supplies

Total Expenditures
Revenues Over (Under) Expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Operating Transfers In $107,800 ($107,900)
Operating Transfers Out {115,300) {($115,300)
Fund Balance Appropriated 7,400 (7,400)

Total Other Financing Sources

Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning 221,966

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 11

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovernmental:
PSAP Collections
investment Earnings
Tofal Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Public Safely:
Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay - EMS Building/Dorm Construction
Capital Qutlay - Vebhicles
Capital Outlay - Equipment
Debt Senice - Prihcipal
Debt Senice - interest
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Fund Balance Appropriated

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Fund Balance, Beginning

Fund Balance, Ending

(44

Variance
Annual 2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$110,700 $109,677 ($1,023)
241 241

$135,119 $111,949 $23,170
6,545 8,578 (2,033)
24,295 23,000 1,295
143,614 143,613 1
30,339 29,610 729

823 614 9

($207,446)

($207,446)




STATEMENT 12

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
APRIL 2011 TORNADO FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FFrom Inception and for The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual Variance
Project Prior Years Current Totat fo Favorable
Authorization as Restated Year Date {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovernmental:
FEMA Recowvery Funds $52,484 $52,464 $52,464
Other:
insurance Proceeds 188,691 67,456 $121,235 188,691

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Economic Development:

insurance Deductible $500 $500
PW 113 - Playground Equip./Scoreboards 54,508 $54,509 $54 509

PW-114 - Windscreen & Fence 47,578 47,578 47,578

PW 118 - Repair 3 Fields 40,440 40,440 40,440

PW 119 - Sign, Picnic Shelter 19,812 17,786 17,786 2,026
PW 138 - Overtime 9,578 . 9,678
PW 341 - bEmergency Operalions 3,870 3,727 3,727 143
PW 181 - Field/Glass Cleanup 31,856 31,856 31,856

PW 86 - Debris Removal 2,000 2,000 2,000

PW 466 - Picnic in Lieu of Appie Depot 29,001 23,204 23,294 5,707
PW 199 - Volunteer Fire 2,011 2,611
Supplies $7,649 (7.649)

Administration Provisions 508 (588)

Facilities 13,198 {13,198)

Equipment Rental 21,949 (21,849)

Refunded to FEMA 11,362 11,392 (11,392)

Total Expenditures

i

Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures 5 (367,953)

FUND BALANCE, Beginning 278,219
FPrior Period Adjustment (See Note I11-D) (201,693)
FUND BALANCE, Beginning (Restated) 76,526

s

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 13

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
2009 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovemnmental:
2009 - 08-C-1994 Community Development Block Grant
2008 Single Family Rehabilitation Community
Development Block Grant

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Economic Development:
2009 Community Development Block Grant
Clearance
Relecation
Rehabilitation
Administration

Total 2009 Community Development Block Grant

2008 Community Development Block Grant
Rehabilitation Hard Costs
Rehabiliation Soft Costs
Administation

TFotal 2008 Single Family Rehab

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over
{(Under) Expenditures

FLUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Favorable
Authorization Years Year Date {Unfavorable)
$345,575 $184,487 $161,088 $345,575
200,000 95,115 95,115 {$104,885)

e

$15,130 ($7,500) $7,630
86,799 127,576 214,375
78,325 9,745 88,070
4,233 31,267 35,500

$160,000
24,000
18,000

AT e PO

$77,290 $77,290 $82,710
17,825 17,825 6,175
16,000

s
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STATEMENT 14

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
HURRICANE IRENE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
for The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Annual 2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovernmental:
FEMA Recovery Funds $35,694 $35,694
Other:

Insurance Proceeds 12,650 22.407 $9,757
Total Revenues =

EXPENDITURES:
Economic Development:
PW 446 - Recreation Park $7.600 $7,600
PW 496 - Owrtime, Administrative 8,958 3,264 $5,694
Facilities 5772 BT72
PW 850 - Mosquito Control 4,407 4,407
PW 430 - Recreation Park Grawl 7,957 7,810 147
PW 435 - Roof Repair 13,650 13,650
Total Expenditures
Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures e $15,508 =

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 15

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROCLINA
SCHOOL CAPITAL FINANCE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FFor The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Annual 2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Reserved for Debt Service:
Public School Building
Capital Fund - Lottery
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
School Capital Projects - Lottery
Debt Sendce - Principal
Debt Senice - interest
Total Expenditures

$11,385
8,615

Revenues Qver Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from General Fund
Total Other Financing Sources

$20,000

Revenue and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expendifures
and Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning 881

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 16

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
AMERICAN PRAWN COOPERATIVE PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Restricted Intergovernmental:
Rurat Center Grant $300,000 $300,000 $300,000
Goiden Leaf Award 50,000 40,000 $10,000 50,000
APC Contribution 7,778 7,777

NC Eastern Region Grant 15,000

Total Revenues

15,000
e =

EXPENDITURES:

Engineer Drawings ‘ $19,625 $19,625 $19,625

Supplies 2,966 7,487 ($7,487) $2,066
Supplies-Golden Leaf 5,607 6,312 (705) 5,607

Travel 3,877 3,877 3,877

Equipment 18,484 16,750 16,750 1,734
Capital Outlay 281,703 281,703 281,703

Live Holding System 20,035 18,8489 1,186 20,035

Live Hauling 19,425 7,045 12,380 19,425

Live Shipping 056

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over Expendifures

FUND BALANCE, Beginning 1,128

FUND BALANCE, Ending

82



STATEMENT 17

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
JAIL CONSTRUCTION / COURT HOUSE RENOVATION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Investment Eamings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Jail Construction:
Administration & Legat
Architectural & Engineering
Construction
Equipment
inspection
Owner's Rep Contract
Miscelianeous
Contingency
Capital Qutlay

Total Jail Construction

Couwrt House Renovation:
Administration & Legal
Architectural - Development & Design
Construction
Equipment
Contingency
Owner's Rep Contract
Inspection
Abatement Design Cost

Total Court House Renovation

Total Expenditures
Revenues Qver (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Temporary Financing Issued for USDA
instaliment Purchase Obligations Issued
installment Purchase Obligation Repaid
Installment Purchase Obligations Re-issued
Total Other Financing Sources

Revenue and Qther Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date (Unfavorable}

$33,976

$19,003 $56,652 $56,652 ($37.649)
1,471,104 1,168,408 1,158,408 312,696

7,853,068 7,903,513 7,803,513 {49,545)
200,000 76,493 76,493 123,507

82,831 82,831 {(82,831)

130,000 131,733 131,733 {1,733}

445,726 639,043 639,943 {194,218}
360,000 360,000
20,200 20,144 20,144 56

$10,000 $2,944 $2,944 $7,056
62,730 $11,088 49,793 61,781 949
598,811 445,233 445,233 163,578
32,000 10,064 10,064 21,0836
63,683 63,683
47,744 6,503 32,860 39,363 8,381
20,000 7,325 © 3,376 10,701 8,299

$10,500,000 $10,500,000 $10,500,000
(771,686) (771,686) ($771,686)
843,068 $466,624 466,624

(376,444)

($77,173) &
(333,716)

€

Amounts reported for Revenue, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Balance
are Different from the Budget/Actual Statements due o consolidation of

Debt Sendce Fund:
Transfers In (Out}

Fund Balance, Beginning (Debt Senice Fund}
Fund Balance, Ending (Consolidated Courthouse Renovatfons Fund)
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STATEMENT 18

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Annual 2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Debt Senice Rewenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt{ Senice Expenditures
Tofal Expenditures

Revenues Qver Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfer from General Fund $172,800 $172,800
Resene - Detention Center (77,508) $77,508
Resene - Intermediae School ' {95,292) 95,292

Tofal Other Financing Sources

Revenue and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources

$172,800

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

84



ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The following comprise the County’s Enterprise Funds:

Utility Fund — The Utility Fund is used to account for the operation of water
and sewer services provided throughout Greene County.

Landfill Fund — The Landfill Fund is used to account for the operations of the
County’s solid waste landfill, Scrap Tire and White Goods disposal.

Transportation System Fund — The Transportation System Fund is used to
account for the operation of the transportation system which provides
services to certain qualifying residents.




STATEMENT 19

Page 1 of 2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NCN-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Charges for Senices:
Water and Sewer Sales $2,322,504 $1,781,064 ($541,440)
South Greene Water Corporation Charges 75,000 213,448 138,448
Tap-on Fees and Senice Charges 45,000 43,187 (1,813)
Penaliies and interest Charges 73,320 73,320

Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

Nonoperating Revenues:
irvestment Eamings
Alternative Water Supply Fees
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Operating:

Salaries and Employee Benefits $482,278 $474,406 $7,872
Supplies 214,000 209,504 4,496
Water Purchases 218,000 172,422 45,578
Maintenance 133,500 115,662 17.838
Contracted Senices 143,279 138,049 5,230
Utilities 203,645 143,528 60,117
Sewer Charges - Town of Farmville 180,000 185,368 (5,369)
Office Expense 58,000 565,243 2,757
Professional Senices 68,000 49,840 18,160
Management Fee - County 25,000 25,000

Capital Qutlay (Under Threshaold) 357 357

insurance 22,500 21,724 776
Depost to Farmille (Joint Agreement) 10,000 10,000

Miscellaneous 1.000 0BT
Total Operating Expenditures i = -

DEBT SERVICE:
interest on Long-Term Debt $420,797 $420,795
Principal Payments 777,287 781,991

Total Debt Service 4

CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Vehicles $32,143 $15,794 $16,349
Total Capital Qutiay =

Total Expenditures

s

Revenues Over Expenditures B (seavRd
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STATEMENT 19

Page 2 of 2
GREENE COUNTY, NOCRTH CAROLINA
UTILITY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers in:
General Fund (Cutter Creek) $278,202 $278,202
Alternative Water Phase 1A 233,080 50,995 ($182,085)
Alternative Water Supply Fund 577,207 577,207
Operating Transfers Out;
Alternative Water Supply Fund {470,000) (677,527) (207,527}
Debt Reserve - Altemative Water Phase 1A (56,738) (56,738)
Debt Reserve - Alternative Water Phase 1C (27,390) (27,390)
Fund Balance Appropriated 107,128 {107,128)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures, Financing Uses, and

Appropriated Fund Balance $152,962
RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGETARY BASIS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL) TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS:
RECONCILING ITEMS:

Depreciation ($759,378)
Deposit to Farmville (Joint Agreement) 10,000
Principal Payments 781,991
Capital Outlay 15,794
increase in Compensated Absences (4,584)
Increase in Other Postemployment Benefits (16,166)
increase in Accrued Interest 2,792
Net income Capital Reserve Fund Excluding Transfers 208
Imvestment Eamings from Alternative Water Supply

Capital Reserve Fund 2,269
Alternative Water Supply Meter Fees from Alternative

Water Supply Capital Reserve Fund 402,297
interest Payments Made From Alternative Water Supply Fund (207,489)
Debt Reserve for Alternative Water Phase 1A 56,738
Debt Reserve for Alternative Water Phase 1C 27,390
Depreciation Water & Sewer District 1 (41,445)
Administrative Expenses Water & Sewer Disctrict 1 (2,000)
Transfer to Alternative Water Supply Fund 677,527
Reimbursment to Water Fund From Alternative Water Supply Fund (577,207)
Alternative Water Phase 1A Project Expenditures (9,518)
Transfer to Water Fund from Alternative Water Phase 1A (50,995)
Irvestment Earmnings on Alternative Water Phase 1A

Project Fund 501
Liguidated Damages - Alternative Water Phase 1C Project Fund 25,000
Contributed Capital Alternative Water Phase 1F Project Fund 284,544
Contributed Capital Alternative Water Phase 1C Project Fund 811,113
Investment Earnings on Alternative Water Phase 1C

Project Fund 261

Total Reconciling iftems
Net Income, Full Accrual Basis
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STATEMENT 20
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

UTILITY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCE-BUDGET
AND ACTUAL (NON -GAAP)
FFor the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Inestment Earnings
Total Revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers in (Out)
Reserve
Total Other Financing Sources

Revenues Over (Under) Other
Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending
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STATEMENT 21

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
UTILITY ALTERNATIVE WATER SUPPLY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET
AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
- For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Investment Earnings
Per Meter AWS Fees
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Senice - Phase 1C Interest Payments
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Other Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In (Out)
Reimbursment to Water Fund
Reserve
Fund Balance Appropriated
Total Other Financing Sources

Revenues Over (Under) Other
Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$2,269
402,297

$470,000 $677.,527 $207,527
(577,207) (577,207)
(470,000) 470,000

(764,903)

$297,397

5,070,629
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STATEMENT 22

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

UTILITY CAPITAL PROJECT

CUTTER CREEK SEWER CONSTRUCTION PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
investment Earnings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Construction
Engineering
Inspection
Legal/Administrative
Surveying
Permit Fees
Other
Contingency

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
instaliment Purchase Obligation Issued
Transfer to Utility Fund

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Totatl Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date (Unfavorable)

$30,648 $30,648 $30,648

$1,515917 $1A476,579 $1,476,579 $39,338
114,437 96,388 96,388 18,049
112,680 112,689 112,689 1
5,000 5,000
5,500 5,362 5,362 138
1,300 1,300 1,300
6,651 750 750 5,901
38,505 38,605

$1,800,000

$1,800,000

$1,800,000
($105,350)

{105,350) ($105,350)
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STATEMENT 23

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

UTILITY CAPITAL PROJECT

ALTERNATIVE WATER PHASE 1A PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL. {NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:

investment Earnings - (BAN Proceeds)
investment Eamings from Phase 1A
interest Camed on Non-Ban Proceeds
USDA - RD Grant Income
EDA Grant Income
Rural Center Grant Income
NC Direct Appropriations
Sales Tax Refund - From Farmiille
Sale of Timber - Site 247
Miscellaneous Income

Tofal Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Construction
Engineering
inspection
Temporary Financing Interest Expense
Land/Easements
Funding Assistance
Administrative
Project Adminstrative
Grant Assistance
Reimbursables
Legal
Geotechnical
Emvronmental
Appraisals
Accounting

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

USDA - RD Loan Income - (BAN Proceeds)

Residual Fund Balance from DOC Waler/Sewer
Project

Transfer o Farmille

Transfer to GC 43-210-434570

Transfer to GC - Water Fund
Total Other Financing Sources

Revenues and Other Financing Over
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorabie
Authorization Years To Date {Unfavorable)
$57,380 $59,089 $59,632 $2,252
20,122 (20,122)
28,180 28,138 28,138
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
500,000 500,000 500,000
400,000 400,000 400,000
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
193,193 7,744 7,744 (185,449)
4,875 4,875 4,875
78,365 (78,365)

$7.617,111
465,518
278,850
414,305
147,447
46,575
46,333
25,000
25,000
21,160
30,696
5,625
5,000
2,300

$7,559,127
456,003
276,127
398,385
147,447
46,575
46,332
25,000
25,000
21,160
30,695
5,625
5,000
2,300

$7,559,127
465,518
276,127
398,385
147,447
46,575
46,332
25,000
25,000
21,160
30,695
5,825
5,000
2,300

$57,984

2,723
15,920

$6,202,000

(200,000)
(70,620)
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$6,202,000 -

192,675

($200,000)

S

£l

$6,202,000

192,575

(200,000)

i

(50,995)

$192,575

70,620



STATEMENT 24

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ALTERNATIVE WATER PHASE 1C PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAPR)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
USDA - RD Grant Income $1,600,000 $932,373 $611,113 $1,543,486 ($56,514)
USDA - RD Transfer from Fammille 200,000 200,000 200,000
USDA - RD Supplemental Grant 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Rural Center Grant Income 2,000,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 {200,000}
Sales Tax Refund - Restricted 316,224 (316,224}
Investment Earnings ~ (BAN Proceeds) 5,166 5,167 89 5,256 a0
investment Earnings 1,184 809
Liquidated Damages 25,000

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Construction $10,220,172 $9,613,459 $279,985 $9,803,444 $326,728
Engineering 582,188 472,576 106,091 578,667 3,521
Contingency - USDA 248,868 248,868
Temporary Financing Interest Expense 408,247 293,016 21,599 314,615 183,632
Inspection 555,745 555,747 555,747 (2)
Land/Easements 203,206 189,222 13,150 202,372 834
Administrative 8,044 8,043 8,043 1
Grant Assistance 25,000 20,000 5,000 25,000

Funding Assistance 25,000 25,000 25,000

Legal 20,697 12,383 8,314 20,697

Audit 5,000 1,700 1,700 3,300
Praject Administration 25,000 20,000 5,000 25,000

Water Board Coordination 35,000 27,954 27,954 7.046
inspection Beyond Contract Period 50,456 4,112 46,344 50,456

Construction Admin Beyond Contract Period 20,000 20,000 20,000

Contingency - Non-USDA 161,142 161,142

Total Expenditures - ‘_,‘
Revenues Qver (Under) Expenditures g $349,191
OTHER FAINANCING SOURCES (USES):

USDA - RD Loan Income - {(BAN Proceeds) $3,800,000 $3,800,000 $3,800,000

USDA - Supplemental Loan 2,737,000 2,737,000 2,737,000

Interim Financing Loan 113,000 ($113,000)

Repayment of Interim Financing Loan {113,000) 113,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) o
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$348,191

N



STATEMENT 25

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ALTERNATIVE WATER PHASE 1F PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:

ARRA - DWSRF Principal Forgiveness Grant

Sales Tax
Local Project Contribution
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Construction
Engineering
Construction Observation
Legal
Audit
Administrative
Project Administration
Funding Assistance
Grant Administration
ARRA DBE Administration
ARRA Buy American Administration
ARRA Job Creation Adminstration
ARRA Davis Bacon Administration
Pemit Fees
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
ARRA - DWSRF Debt Proceeds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

FUND BALANCE:, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date {Unfavorable)

$1,500,000 $1,215,456 $284,544 $1,500,000
90,066 {$90,066)
26,614 {26,614}

101 101

$2,568,679 $1,964,759 $503,854 $2,468,613 $90,066

174,347 $142,032 31,415 174,347
191,832 167,947 23,885 191,832
2,775 2,775 2,776
1,700 1,700 1,700
4,607 4,607 4,607
85,000 80,000 5,000 86,000
25,000 25,000 25,000
25,000 20,000 5,000 25,000
10,660 33,625 (23,625) 10,000
8,500 6,500 6,500
5,000 5,000 5,000
25,600 285,000 25,000

1,240 1,240 1,240

$1,500,000 $1,215,4586 $284,544 $1,500,000

($15,881)

(10,632
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STATEMENT 26

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ALTERNATIVE WATER PHASE 1G PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual Variance
Project . Prior Current Total Favorable
Authorization Years Year To Date {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
USDA - RD Grant Income $2,138,000 {$2,138,000)
Owner Contribution From Surcharge 100,000 (100,000}
Sales Tax Refund - Restricted 35,000 (35,000)
Sales Tax Refund - Unrestricted 165,000 {165,000}
Total Revenues A3 )
EXPENDITURES:
Construction $8,205,200 $8,205,200
Engineering 536,600 536,600
Inspection 400,000 400,000
Legal 15,000 15,000
Land/Easements 140,000 $9,180 $9,180 130,820
Temporary Financing Interest 50,000 50,000
Funding Assistance 5,000 5,000
Project Administration 10,000 10,000
Buy American - ARRA 6,500 6,500
Job Creation - ARRA 5,000 5,000
DBE - ARRA 10,000 10,000
Davis Bacon - ARRA 10,000 10,000
Adwertisement 2,000 2,600
Printing 10,000 10,000
Reimbursable 2,000 2,000
Repayrment of Interim Financing Loan 100,000 100,000
Contingency 409,700 409,700
Funding Assistance - Non-USDA 20,000 20,000
Project Administration - Non-USDA 18,000 15,000
Grant Administration - Non-USDA 25,000 25,000
Water Board Coordination - Non-USDA 15,000 156,000
Contingency - Non-USDA 125,000 125,000

Total Expenditures
Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
USDA - RD Loan Income - {(BAN Proceeds) $7,579,000 {$7,579,000)
interim Financing Loan From Surcharge 100,000 {100,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) = 0
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under} Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

e

($9,180) =
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STATEMENT 27

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 1 FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year End June 30, 2012

Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES:
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Administrative $2,000 $2,000
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures — ($2,000)

RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGETARY BASIS
{(MMODIFIED ACCRUAL) TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS:

RECONCILING ITEMS:

Depreciation
Total Reconciling Hems

Net Income (Loss), Full Accrual Basis

o4



STATEMENT 28

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER DEBT RESERVE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year End June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Debt Senice Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Senice Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Utility Fund
Phase 1A Resene
Phase 1C Resene
Total Other Financing Sources

Revenue and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCE, Beginning

FUND BALANCE, Ending

95

Variance
Annual 2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$84,128
(56,738)

$84,128
$56,738

$84,128




STATEMENT 29

Page 1 of 2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
LANDFILL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Operating:

Landfill Fees $845,124 $897,494 $52,370
Total Operating Revenues ] i .

Nonoperating:
Investment Earnings

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Operating:
Salaries and Employee Benefits $187,200 $187,005 $285
Employee Training 1,500 1,483 17
Supplies 45,600 44 924 76
Maintenance 110,342 110,748 (408)
Contracted Senvices 327,092 313,894 13,198
Utilities 16,200 13,991 2,209
Professional Senices 19,000 17,289 1,711
Insurance 8,000 7,531 469
Site Improvements 3,000 2,546 454
Telephone and Postage 5,200 5,058 142
Travel 1,000 558 442
Disposal Fees 147,000 133,256 13,744
Total Expenditures $u7

CAPITAL QUTLAY:
Equipment
Total Capital Qutlay

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
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STATEMENT 29

Page 2 of 2
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
LANDFILL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Fund Balance Appropriated $80,000 ($80,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Sources QOver
{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGETARY BASIS

(MODIFIED ACCRUAL) TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS:

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

RECONCILING ITEMS:
Decrease in Compensated Absences
Increase in Other Postemployment Benefits
Depreciation
Capital Outlay
Total Reconciling ltems

Net Income (Loss), Full Accrual Basis
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$4,761

($1,786)

(5,235)

(46,752)
54,500
$727




STATEMENT 30

GREENE CCUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Operaling:
Transportation Fares
Total Operating Revenues
Nonoperafing:
Investment Eamings
ROAP - EMPL

BOT Transportation Coordination Grant

NCDOT Capital Grant
ROAP - EDTAP
ROAP - RGP
Third Party Reimbursments
Total Nonoperating Revenues
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Operafing:
Salaries and Empioyee Benefits
Supplies and Fuel
Maintenance
Utilities
Office Expense
Telephone and Postage
Travel
Miscellaneous Operaling Expense
Rent
Indirect Costs
Total
CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Vehicles
Total Capital Qutlay
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Fund Balance Appropriated
Total Other Financing Sources

Revenues and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Over Expenditures

RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGETARY BASIS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL) TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS:

RECONCILING ITEM S:
Increase in Compensated Absences

Increase in Olher Post Employment Benefits

Depreciation

Capital Outlay

Total Reconciling ftems

Net Income, Full Accrual Basis

98

Variance
2012 Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$11.424
97,826
188,446
52,700
46,909
3,000

$309,636 $307,358 $2,278
77,348 77,871 (523)
27,303 27,113 190
1,843 1,891 (48)
11,993 11,993
2,622 2,409 213
3,224 3,211 13

180 70

($2,584)

(2.371)

(48,601)
158,812
$105,256




INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

ASQ Self-Funded Medical Insurance Fund - The ASO Seli-
Funded Medical Insurance Fund is used fo account for moneys
collected from employer and employees and fo account for medical
insurance claims paid for said employees, their spouses and
dependents.




STATEMENT 31

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ASO-SELF FUNDED MEDICAL INSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES ~ FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Financial 2012 Favorable
Pilan Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Operating:

County Contributions/Premiums

$1,586,630
Total Operating Revenues il

($305,369)

Nonoperating:
Invesiment Earnings
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Operating:
Medical Ciaims and Fees $1,891,999 $1,582,444
Total i

Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures
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AGENCY FUNDS

The following comprise the County’s Agency Funds:

Municipal Tax Fund - The Municipal Tax Fund is used to account
for property tax collections for the municipalities located within the
County as well as collection and remittance of the three percent
interest levied on the first month of delinquent motor vehicle property
taxes.

Social Services Fund - The Social Services Fund is used to
account for funds received by the County by court order on behalf of
citizens who are unable to manage their own financial affairs.

Jail Inmate Fund - The Jail Inmate Fund is used to account for
funds held on behalf of the inmates of the Greene County Jail.

Fines and Forfeitures Fund - The Fines and Forfeitures Fund is
used to account for fines and forfeitures collected by the County that
are required fo be remitted to the Greene County Board of
Education.

South Greene Water Collection Fund - The South Greene Water
Collection Fund is used to account for water funds collected and
remitted under a contract basis on behalf of South Greene Water
Corporation.




STATEMENT 32

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Municipal Tax Fund:
Assels:
Cash $3,632 $114,932 $108,741 $9,823
Due from Other Governmentis 5,247 4 3,839 1,412
= : 8
Liabilities:
3% DMV Interest $11,0683 $11,063
Accounis Payable $8,879 106,225 103,869 $11,235

Social Servives Fund:
Assets, Cash

Liabilities, Accounts Payable

Jail Inmate Fund:
Assets, Cash

Liabilities, Accounts Payable
Fines and Fortfeitures Fund:

Assgets:
Cash $8,526 $6,526
Due from Other Governments $5,262 110,376 $107,631 8,007
Liabllifies:

Accounts Payable

South Greene Water Collection Fund:

Assets:
Cash $93,025 $464,087 $538,804 $19,208
Due from Cther Govemnmments 44,997 44,997

Liabilities:

Accourts Payable

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS:

Assets, Cash and Due From
Other Governments
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $271,801 $807,896 $903,437 $176,260

Total Liabilities
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STATISTICAL SECTION

[ This section Includes additional Information required on §
property taxes and transfers.

- Statement of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

- Analysis of Current Tax Levy

- Ten Largest Taxpayers




GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE

June 30, 2012

STATEMENT 33

Uncollected Collections Uncollected
Fiscal Year Balance and Batance
Ended June 30, June 30, 2011 Additions Credits June 30, 2012
201112 $7.672,231 $7,346,581 $325,650
2010-11 $350,416 220,498 129,918
2009-10 96,806 31,341 65,465
2008-09 48,467 15,435 34,032
200708 27,937 6,104 21,833
2006-07 19,913 2,709 17,204
2005-06 19,885 2,615 17,270
2004-05 16,544 1,843 14,701
2003-04 16,506 1,918 14,588
2002-03 40,068 2,818 37,251
2001-02 8,756 8,756
$677,912
L.ess Allowance for Uncollectible Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable: 141,397

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable, Net

Reconciliation with Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes - General Fund
Interest and Penalties Collected on Ad Valorem Taxes - General Fund

Reconciling ltems:

Interest and Penalties Collected
Refunds

Dog Tax

Taxes Written Off

Pricr Year Releases/Adjustments

Total Reconciling {tems

Total Collections and Credits
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$7,683,177
164,248

($164,248)
68,420
(1,247)
(5,030)
(104,702)




STATEMENT 34

GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
COUNTY-WIDE LEVY
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total Levy
Property
County-Wide Excluding
Property Amount of Registered Registered
Valuation Rate Levy Motor Vehicles Motor Vehicles
Original Levy:
Property Taxed at Current Year's Rate $958,500,397 0.756 $7.,248,263 $6,648,461 $597.802
Motor Vehicles Taxed at Prior Year's Rate 45,061,058 0.756 340,586 340,586

Total

Discoveries:

Current Years Taxes 57,293,915 0.756 $55,142 $55,142
Prior Years Taxes 46,756 46,756
Penalties 36,161 36,161

Total Discoveries

Abatements

Releases {$6,967,857) 0.756 ($52,677) ($26,911)

Total Abatements

Total Property Valuation

Net Levy $7,672,231 $6,759,609 $912,622

Uncollected Taxes at June 30, 2012 325,650 207,394 118,266

Current Year's Taxes Collected

Current Levy Collection Percentage

102



GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

STATEMENT 35

2011 Percentage of
Type of Assessed Total Assessed
Taxpayer Business Valuation Valuation

Pitt-Greene EMC Utility $16,416,842 1.64%
Ham Famns, Inc. Agricultural 11,903,264 1.19%
Mill Run Dewelopment Group, L1L.C Construction 9,614,645 0.96%
Progress Energy Carolinas Utility 6,868,929 0.68%
Carolina Telephone Telephone 5,694,516 0.57%
Cutter Creek Golf Club I, LLC Country Club 5,166,058 0.51%
Piedmont Natural Gas Co., Inc. Utility 4,609,851 0.46%
L.L. Murphrey Company, Inc. Swine Producer 4,550,240 0.45%
Vanrack, Inc. Construction 4,316,203 0.43%
Biotech Mills, Inc. Emdronmental 3,729,862 0.37%
$72,870,511 7.27%
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COMPLIANCE SECTION




BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

662 SUSSEX STREET
KINSTON, NORTH CAROLINA 28504-8319

EDWARD L. BARROW, €Pa
JAY A, PARRIS, CPA MAILING ADDRESS
I DOCK DAVENPORT 15, CPA MEMBERS POST OFFICE BOX 6069

N ERICAMN MNSTIITE OF CORTITED FUBLIC ACCOTANTS KINSTON, NC 28501-0069
i DWAYNE MURPHY, CPA TELEPHONE: (252) 522-5200
DAVID L. COMER. CPa FAX: (252) 523-6360

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Greene County, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregated remaining fund information of
Greene County, North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprises Greene
County's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 19, 2012. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Greene County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effeciive internal control over financial
reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Greene County's iniernal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Greene County’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal contro! over financial
reporting.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the schedule of findings
and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses and deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the County's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
guestioned costs as Finding 12-1, Finding 12-2, Finding 12-3, and Finding 12-4 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We considfer the deficiencies described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 12-5, Finding 12-6, and Finding 12-7 to be
significant deficiencies.
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Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Greene County's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 12-5, Finding 12-6, and Finding 12-7.

The County's response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. We did not audit the County's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on i,

This report is intended solely for the information of the audit committee, management, others within the organization,
members of the county commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended and sheuld not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Bearad, ﬂw?'ﬁwyﬁﬁ £4.
BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.

November 19, 2012
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE
SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Greene County, North Carolina

Cormpliance
We have audited Greene County, North Caroling’s compliance, with the types of compliance reguirements described in

the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. Greene County's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of audifors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, confracts and grants applicable to each of its
maijor federal programs is the responsibility of Greene County's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on Greene County’s compliance based on our audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audifs of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Greene County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, Qur audit does
not provide a legal determination of Greene County’s compliance with those requirements.

in our opinion, Greene County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Greene County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Greene County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal conirol over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but nof for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compilance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed fo identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, members of the
County Commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.

November 19, 2012
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECTION OMB CIRCULAR A-
133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Greene County, North Carolina

Compliance '
We have audited Greene County, North Carolina’s compliance, with the types of compliance requirements described in

the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. Greene County's
major State programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, confracts and grants applicable to each of
its major State programs is the responsibility of Greene County’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on Greene County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller Generai of the United States; and applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and described in the Audit
Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit implementation Act. Those standards,
applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Impiementation Act require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Greene County's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Greene County’s compliance
with those requiremenis.

in our opinion, Greene County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of ifs major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2012,

Internal Control Over Compliange

The management of Greene County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, confracts and grants applicable fo State programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Greene County's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on a major State program in order {0 determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance with applicable sections
of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the County’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal confrol over compliance exisis when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a ftype of compliance requirement of a State program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internat control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in infernal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, members of the
County Commissioners, and federal and Siate awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

BARROW, PARRIS & DAVENPORT, P.A.

November 19, 2012

109



SCHEDULE 1
Page 10of B
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
YES NO

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal contro! over financiat reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified X

¢ Significant deficlency(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses X

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted X

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

e Material weakness{es) identified X

e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not
considerad fo be material weaknesses X

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
federal programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Section 510(a} of Circular A-133 X

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Programs or Cluster

10.766 Community Facilities Loan
93.778 Title XIX — Medicaid

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B Programs $1,017 676
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
YES NO
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee X
State Awards
Internal control over major State programs:
¢ Material weakness(es) identified X
¢ Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not -
considered to be material weaknesses X
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
State programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required fo be reported
in accordance with State Single Audit iImplementation Act X
ldentification of major State programs:
Program Name
Title XIX - Medicaid -- State Match
Il. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

FINDING 12-1 —~ REPORTING

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Criteria: The County should have personnei in place that have expertise in financial accounting
and reporting sufficient to prepare or review the audited financial statements to ensure
they are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Condition: Although the County has competent financial personnel to perform the daily functions of
the finance department, the staff does not have the technical training and background to
prevent, detect, and correct potential misstatements in the financial siatements and
notes prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Effect: The financial statements could include material misstatements or inadequate disclosures
not in accerdance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Cause: Management has historically relied on its auditors to prepare the audited financial
statements. However, the auditor services cannot serve as an internal control for the
County. Personnel have not acquired the technical fraining or expertise to be efficient in
this area.

Recommendation: The County may consider providing the necessary fraining o current personnel or

outsourcing the financial statement preparation function. However, an analysis of the
costs versus benefits should be considered. This is a repeat finding.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned
Correcfive Action:

Due to the related cosis in eliminating this control deficiency, management has
determined that we are willing to accept the risks associated with the control deficiency.
We will continue to monitor the internal controls over financial reporting, and will make
attempts to improve the related internal control process when feasible.

FINDING 12-2 - REPORTING

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Criteria;

Condition:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation;

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned
Corrective Action:

County personnel should adjust account balances to reflect appropriate year-end
balances.

Some accounts had not been adjusted to reflect appropriate year-end balances. Some
of the accounis not appropriately adjusted included sales tax receivable, accrued
vacation, accrued OPEB, capital outlay, depreciation expense and customer deposits.
Some of these unrecorded adjustments were, in our judgment, material to the financial
statements

The financial statements could include material misstatements.

The County has procedures in place which require and expect that accounts will be
adjusted to reflect appropriate year-end balances. Not all accounts were adjusted to
appropriate year-end balances.

County personnel needs to make it a priority to get its books and records adjusted
accurately and timely. This is a repeat finding. It can however, be noted that
significantly more required journal entries were made by the County this year compared
to past years.

The County agrees with this finding and will continue to place emphasis on having all
accounts adjusted.

FINDING 12-3 — SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Criteria:

Condition:

Duties should be segregated o provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are
handled appropriately.

With a limited number of personnsl for certain functions, there are inherent limitations of
the effectiveness of certain conifrols due fo the lack of segregation of duties among
County personnel in the following departments:

Utility: An employee who collects payments also maintains the
subsidiary billing register.

Register of Deeds: Certain employees receive cash, prepare customer receipts,
and make the daily bank deposits.
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Fffect:

Cause;
Recommendation:
Views of Responsible

Officials and Planned
Corrective Actions.

Page 4 of 6
GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Landfill: An employee who receives on-site tipping fees alsc prepares

the customer receipts and bank deposits.
Transactions could be mishandled.
There are a limited number of personnel for certain functions.

The duties should be separated as much as possible and alternative controls should be
used {o compensate for lack of segregation. This is a repeat finding.

The County agrees with this finding and, where feasible, duties will be separated as
much as possible.

FINDING 12-4 - FIXED ASSETS

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Criteria:

Condition;

Effect;

Cause:

Recommendation.

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned
Corrective Action:

Fixed asset records should be maintained accurately and completely to ensure that
all fixed assets meeting the County’s capitalization ihreshold are capitalized and
depreciated appropriately.

During the audit of fixed assets, we determined that the spreadsheet used by the
County to maintain the fixed asset records contained a significant number of errors.
These included incorrect beginning balances, improper calculations of depreciation
and omission of additions.

The depreciation schedule could include material misstatements.

Since custom depreciation software is not being used to frack fixed assets, the
County should implement additional procedures fo ensure that the spreadsheet used
to depreciate fixed assets is accurate and complete.

The County should carefully test the calculations related to the depreciation schedule
to ensure that calculations are correct and should also check them thoroughly for all
additions. The County may choose to use custom depreciation software designed for
governmental entities.

The County agrees with this finding. Training through the current software vendor
has been taking place and the County is in the process of converting its fixed asset
schedules to the MUNIS system software. The County expects to have this process
completed within the coming fiscal year. In a meeting held between the County and
the LGC staff, the County was encouraged not to rush the automation process but to
take the time necessary to allow for an accurate conversion.
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FINDING 12-5 - BUDGET OVER EXPENDITURE

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
IMMATERIAL NONCOMPLIANCE

Criteria;

Condition:

Effect:

Catise:

Recommendation:

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned
Corrective Actions:

In accordance with North Carclina General Statute 159-8, all monies received or
expended by a local government or public authority should be in accordance with an
approved budget ordinance.

Expenditures made in 3 line items of various funds exceeded the appropriations made
by the governing board.

Moneys were spent that had not been appropriated by the Board.

The County did not amend the budget line items for changes occurring through the year
not anticipated in the initial adoption of the budget ordinances. Required budget
amendments needed to account for these fransactions were not submitted to the board
for amendment before year-end.

The budget should be monitored closely to ensure that appropriations are available
before expenditures are incurred. This is a repeat finding.

The County agrees with this finding and will more closely monitor budget reports in the
future.

FINDING 12-6 ~ BUDGETED PROPERTY TAX COLLECTION PERCENTAGE

SIGNIFICANT REFICIENCY
IMMATERIAL NONCOMPLIANCE

Criteria:

Condition.

Effect:

Cause:

North Carolina General Statute 159-13(b) requires that the estimated percentage of
collections of property iaxes for budgeting purposes shall not be greater than the
percentage of the levy actually realized in cash in the prior year.

The County budgeted 97.44% estimated collection rate for the current year real property
tax collections. Based on the current year levy and prior year collections, it appears that
the County should not have budgeted an amount greater than 96.56% for the current
year real property tax revenues. The county budgeted 87.85% estimated collection rate
for current year vehicle tax collections. Based on the current year levy and prior year
collections, it appears that the County should not have budgeted an amount greater than
86.01% for the current year vehicle tax revenues.

Tax revenues were budgeted in excess of amounts allowed.

The County failed to amend the budgeted rate after the 2010-2011 actual collection
percentage was determined.
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Recommendation:

Views of Responsible
Officials and Planned
Corrective Actions:

Responsible personnel will monitor actual collection percentage and compare to
budgeted percentage in the future and amend budget if necessary.

Management agrees with this finding and intends to compare actual collection
percentage to budgeted amount and amend if necessary.

FINDING 12-7 — PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE

SIGNIFICANT DIFICIENCY

IMMATERIAL NONCOMPLIANCE

Criteria:

Conditior:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Views of Responsible
Officials and FPlanned
Corrective Actions:

North Carolina General Statute 159-28{a) requires the finance officer fo determine if a
sufficient balance remains in the budget “to pay the sums obligated by the transaction”,
and that the finance officer certify to this by sighing a "preaudit certificate” and placing it
on the contract, agreement, or purchase order before it can become an obligation of the
governmental unit.

For approximately ten months of the fiscal year, the County did not adhere to the
*preaudit certificate” requirement.

Obligations were paid without the proper "preaudit certificate”.

The County switched lemplates for their accounts payable checks effective September
1, 2011. The new templates (checks) did not have the “preaudit certificate” on them as
the former templates did. The finance officer did not pick up on this change and did not
place manual “preaudit certificates” on checks. This was not corrected before year end.

The County should either obtain revised accounts payables check templates to include
the “preaudit certificate” language or manually stamp/sign each obligation when paid.

The County agrees with this finding and did correct as soon as the problem was
discovered in June of 2012,

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

NONE

STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

NONE
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FINDING: 12-1
A Name-of Contact Person: Shawna Wooten, Finance Officer
B. Corrective Action; Management is willing {o accept the risks associated with this control

deficiency but will also explore the option of outsourcing financial
statement preparation.

C. Proposed Completion Date: The County plans to begin this process immediately.

FINDING: 12-2 |

A. Name of Contact Person: Shawna Wooten, Finance Officer

B. Corrective Action: The Finance Officer has developed a periodic checklist documenting
duties to be performed and detailing accounts that require adjustment.
Emphasis will be placed on adjusting accounts monthly. 1t can be noted
that significantly more required journal entries were made by the County
this year compared to past years.

C. Proposed Completion Date; The County pians to begin this process immediately.

FINDING: 12-3

A, Name of Contact Person: Shawna Wooten, Finance Officer

B. Corrective Action: Where feasible, the duties will be separated as much as possible, and
alternative controls will be used to compensate for lack of segregation.

The County has been and will continue implementing the above
C. Proposed Completion Date: procedures as alternatives become available.

FINDING: 12-4

A. Name of Contact Person: Shawna Wooten, Finance Officer

B. Corrective Action; The County has received additional fixed asset module fraining with
MUNIS and is in the process of converting all fixed assets to the MUNIS
system. The County plans to have all fixed asset information transferred
to the MUNIS software system within the coming fiscal year.

C. Proposed Completion Date: The County has already begun this process,
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

FINDING: 12-5
A. Name of Contact Person:

B. Corrective Action:

C. Proposed Completion Date:

FINDING: 12-6
A. Name of Contact Person:;

B. Corrective Action:

C. Proposed Completion Date:

FINDING: 12-7
A Name of Coniact Person:

B. Corrective Action;

C. Proposed Completion Date:

Shawna Wooten, Finance Officer

The Finance Officer plans to review all line items on a monthly basis,
The Board will review all department funds at meetings and solicit the
department head’s oversight for all of their department's accounts,
Preapproval by the appropriate authorizing party will be required for any
invoice or purchase order that makes a line item over budget.

The County pians fo begin this process immediately.

Shawna Wooten, Finance Officer

The Finance Officer plans to budget on allowable amounts for property
tax collections in the future and monitor close enough o amend the
budgeted amount when necessary.

The County plans to begin this process immediately.

Shawna Wooten, Finance Officer

The Finance Officer has obtained "revised” accounts payable check
templates that contain the necessary “preaudit certificate.”

The County has corrected this finding as of June 2012,
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

FINDING:

STATUS:

11-1 Financial Reporting

Not corrected. See current year finding 12-1.

11-2 Reporting

Partially corrected. See current year finding 12-2.

11-3 Segregation of Duties

Not corrected. Duties are being separated as much as possible and alternative controls are
being impiemented for lack of separation. See current year finding 12-3.

11-4 Fixed Assets

Not corrected. Errors on the County’s fixed asset depreciation schedule were noted during the
current year. See current year finding 12-4.

11-5 Budget Over-expenditures
Not corrected. Instances of budgetary over-expenditures noted during the current year. See

current year finding 12-5.

11-6 USDA Loan Covenants [/ Debt Service Requirements

Corrected.

11-7 Medicaid - Documentation

Corrected.

11-8 Enterprise Program Integrity Control System (EPICS) - Program Files

Corrected,

11-9 Medicaid - Documentation

Corrected.
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GREENE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Local

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Administered by County Finance Department;

USDA Supplement Title HI C-1 10.570 NC-15 $7,536
USDA Supplement Title HI C-2 10570 NC-15 4,238
$11,774 $0 $0
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Bivision of Public Heaith:
Administered by County Health Depariment:
Special Supplemental Nufrition Program for
Women, Infants and Children: 10.557 15405405 $191,621
AGRI-SFP Food Program Meal 10.559 a6
Direct Benefit Payments:
Special Supplemental Nufrition Program for WIC 10.557 400,021
Total Division of Public Health $591,738 $0 $0
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services:
Administered by Counly Department of Social Services:
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Cluster:
State Administrafive Matching Grants for the Supplemental
Nutrifion Assistance Program 10.561 $182,169 $182,169
Total Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Cluster $182,169 $0 $182,169
Totai NC Department of Health and Human Services $785,681 $0 $182,169
Passed Through Rural Development:
Administered by Counfy Finance Department:
Phase 1C System Improvement Grant 10.760 487,183
Administered by Counfy Finance Departrment:
$10,500,000 USDA Communily Facilities Loan 10.766 544270
Administered by Counly Finance Department:
$6,600,000 Community Facilities Loan 10.766 4,802,345
$7,QO0,000 Community Facilities Loan 10.768 5,249,293
Total Rural Development $11,083,091 $0 50

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor’s Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Local

U.S, DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Passed Through NC Department of Crime Control and Public Safety:

Division of Emergency Management:
Administered by County Finance Department:
Homeland Securily Grant Program
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program
Emergency Food and Sheiter National Board Program
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVEL OPWMENT:
Passed Through NC Department of Commerce:
Division of Community Assistance:
Administered by Counly Finance Depariment:
2008 Community Development Block Grant
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
Passed Through NC Department of Natural Resources:
Division of Community Assistance:
Administered by County Finance Deparfment:
ARRA - Drinking Water State Revolving Loan
ARRA - DWSRF Principal Forgiveness Loan
Total U.8. Environmental Protection Agency

U.S, DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY;
Passed Through NC Depariment of Crime Controf & Public Safety:
Administered by Counly Finance Deparfment:
Aprit 2011 Tormado Relief
Hurricane lrene Relief
Total LLS. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Adminisi{ration on Aging:
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Aging Cluster:
Administered by Counly Finance Department:
Access 90% State Funds
Access Title H-B
Title HIF C-1 Congregate Meals
Congregate Meals 90% State Funds
Tifle HE C-2 90% State Funds
Titie Hl C-2 Home-Delivered Meals

120

97.067
97.024
97.024

14.228

66.468
66.468

97.036
97.036

N/A
93.044
83.045

NIA

NiA
93.045

NC~156
NC-156
NC-15

NC-15
NC-15

$11,252
21,841 $7,313
22,253

$284,545
284,545

$27,801 $9,300
26,770 8,924

$23,819 $2.847

$10,364 610 1,219
31,397 1,847 3,694
3,096 344

17,080 1,899

20,608 1,212 2,425
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal Sfate Local

Administered by Counly Department of Social Services and County Council on Aging:
In Home Services:
in-Home State
in-Home Tite HI-B
Social Services Block Grant
Total Aging Cluster

Division of Public Health:

Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:

Administered by Counfy Health Depariment:
Pubtic Health Emergency Preparedness
Immunization Program
Prevention Investigations
ARRA - Preventing Healthcare
Cancer Early Detection
Healthy Start Communifies
Maternal and Child Health Senvices
Family Planning
Risk Reducticn/Health Promotion
Family Planning Services

Total Division of Public Health

Administration for Children and Famities:

Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:

Division of Social Services:
Administered by Counfy Finance Department:
Chafee Foster Care Independence Program (CFCIR)
Total Administration for Children and Families

Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:

Division of Social Services:

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster:

Administered by County Department of Social Services:
Workfirst Adminisration
Workfirsi Senices
TANF Domestic Violence
Family Planning
Family Presesvation

Direct Benefit Payments:

Benefit Payments

Total TANF Cluster

N/A
093.044
93.687

93.069

93.268 -

93.283
93.717
93.919
83.926
93.294
93.218
93.901
g93.217

93.674

93.658
93.558
03.558
93.658
93.566

83.558
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NC-15 $48,390 $5,378
NC-15 $43,798 2,576 5,163
NC-15 21,858 625 2,498
$128,025 $99,274 $25,257
$37,604
9,214
5,240
100
5,022 $1,278
45,220
60,932 45,704
6,615
6,145
40,406
$203,738 $59,739 $0
$2,389 $597
$2,388 $597 $0
$61,832 $33,406
261,089 223,140
8,491
2818
2.22%
206,677
$543,028 $0 $256,546
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL AWARDS
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Local

Tite IV-D Administration 93.563 $145,711 $82,640

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance:

Administration 83.6568 $21,931
Crisis Intervention Payments 93.588 119,957
Direct Benefit Payments:
Energy Assistance Payments 93.568 57,405
$199,293 $0 $0
Permanency Planning - Reg 93.645 $5,006 $1,018 $2,008

Foster Care and Adoption Cluster

Titte V-E CPS 93.658 $31,721 $6,543 $25178
Titte IV-E Optional 93.668 1,689 588
Direct Benefit Payments:
Title {V-E Foster Care 93.658 7001 1,870 1,870
Title M-E Adoption Subsidy 93.659 94,998 25,397 51,438
Total Foster Care and Adoption Cluster $135,409 $33,810 $79,082

Social Services Biock Grant:

Cther Services and Training 93.667 $80,835 $10474 $39,088
In Home Services Fund 93.667 9,640 1,780
Total Social Services Block Grant $90,275 $10,474 $41,768
Total Division of Social Services $1,121,111 $45,899 $462,044

Division of Child Development:
Administered by County Depariment of Social Services:
Subsidized Child Care Ciuster:

CCDF Discretionary Subsidy 93.575 $348,985

CCDF 93.596 71,853

CCDF Mandatory 93.596 102,283

CCDF Match 93.596 23,897 $12,710

Sociaf Services Block Grant 93.667 2,488 $829
Total Chiid Care Development Fund Cluster $550,526 $12,710 $829
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
GrantorfProgram Title Number Number Federal State Local

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 $143,4867

State Programs 93714 13,151

Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 4,001

Smart Start TANF MOE N/A $25,615

Smart Start NIA 8,059
Total Subsidized Child Care Cluster ' $160,619 $31,674 $0
Total Division of Child Deve topnﬁent $711,145 $44,384 $829

Health Care Financing Administration:
Passed Through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Medical Assistance:
Administered by County Department of Social Services:

Medical Assistance Administration 93.778 $203,275 $202,332
Medical Assistance Expansion 93.778 9,171 $9,171
Medical Transportation Admin 83.778 28,478 2,163 26,991
Adult Care Home Special/Case Management 83.778 9,864 4,932 4,032
CCNC & Pregnancy Prevention 93778 17,261 5,659
Direct Benefit Payments:

Medical Assistance 93.778 18,765,447 10,096,132

$19,033,496 $11,019,057 $234,255

Division of Social Services:
Administration:
State Children's Insurance Program - NC Health Choice 93.767 $15,966 $1,364 $3,758

Total U.8. Department of Heaith and Human Services

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE
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Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Local

NC DEPARTMENT OF THE ADMINISTRATION:
Division of Veteran Affairs:
Administered by County Veterans Office:
Veteran Affairs N/A

NC DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES:
Division of Waste Management:
Administered by Counly Finance Department:
Soil Conservation Grant  NA

NC DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE & DELINQUENCY PREVENTION:
Administered by Counify Finance Depariment:
Juvenile Crime Prevention:

Juvenile Crime Prevention Administration N/A $10,381
Family Preservation N/A 14,205
SEED Program N/A 11,878

Juvenite Restitution N/A 44,224
Total NC Department of Juvenile Justice & Delingquency Prevention 88

NC DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH & HUMAN SERVICES:
Division of Social Services:
Administered by County Depariment of Soclal Services:

State Aid to Counties N/A $22
Energy Neighborhood N/A 252
Direct Benefit Payment:
SC/BADomiciliary Care Payments MN/A 252,601 $252,601
$0 $252,875 $252.601

Division of Public Health:
Administered by Counly Health Department:

General N/A $102,207
Women's Preveniative Health N/A 4,280
Communicable Disease N/A 10,623
Aids - State NSA 500
Emnvironmental Health N/A 4,000
HWTFC Grant N/A 1378 56,263
Food & Lodging N/A 1,928

$179,802

Total NC Department of Health and Human Services s
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Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA, Grantor's Expenditures
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Federal State Local

NC DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE:

Administered by Counly Finance Depariment;

SHUP Grant
Total NC Department of Insurance

NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Administered by County Finance Department:

ROAP Funds
Transportation Capital Grant
Total NC Department of Transportation

NC DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS:
Division of Community Corrections:
Administered by County Sheriffs Department:
Criminal Justice Parinarship
Total NC Department of Corrections

TOTAL STATE ASSISTANCE

TOTAL FEDERAL AND STATE ASSISTANCE

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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$2,916

$111,033
149,235
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1.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying scheduie of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State grant activity of
Greene County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Frofif Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements., Benefit
payments are paid directly to recipients and are not included in the County’s basic financial statements. However, due
to the County’s involvement in determining eligibility, they are considered federal awards fo the County and are included
on this schedule.

LOANS OQUTSTANDING

Greene County had the following loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2012. The expended portion of these loan
proceeds are inciuded in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule.

CFDA Amount
Program Title Number  Outstanding

Community Faciliies Loans & Grants

Financing with USDA loans

$10,500,000 loan, $10,194,938 Expenditures to date 10.766 $10,194,938
Community Facilitftes Loans & Grants

Financing with USDA loans

$6,600,000 loan, $4,802,445 Expenditures to date 10.766 $2,754.275
Community Facilities Loans & Granis

Financing with USDAloans

$7,000,000 loan, $7,000,000 Expenditures to date 10.766 $7,000,000

3. The following are clustered by NC Department of Health and Human Services and are treated separately for state audit

requirement purposes: Foster Care and Adoption, and Subsidized Child Care.
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